Licensing and
Health and Safety

BOROUGH

COUNCIL

TUESDAY 21 JULY 2020 AT 6.30 PM

Microsoft Teams

The Councillors listed below are requested to attend the above meeting, on the day and at the time
and place stated, to consider the business set out in this agenda.

Membership
Councillor Allen Councillor Link
Councillor Mrs Bassadone Councillor Peter
Councillor Bhinder (Vice-Chairman) Councillor Pringle
Councillor P Hearn (Chairman) Councillor Rogers
Councillor Imarni Councillor R Sutton

Councillor Johnson

For further information, please contact Corporate and Democratic Support or 01442 228209

AGENDA

1. MINUTES (Pages 3 - 5)
To confirm the minutes from the previous meeting.
2 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
To receive any apologies for absence.
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive any declarations of interest.
4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
5. REVIEW OF STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY (Pages 6 - 70)

6. TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE ADVICE (CORONAVIRUS) (Pages 71 -77)






Agenda ltem 1

ER R R R R e R S R R T R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R R e s

DACORUM BOROUGH COUNCIL
LICENSING AND HEALTH AND SAFETY ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE

10 MARCH 2020

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkhkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkhkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkkx

Present-
MEMBERS:

Councillor Hearn (Chairman), Allen, Bassadone, Bhinder, Johnson, Link, Pringle and
R Sutton

OFFICERS:

Usman Mohammed Litigation Barrister

Nathan March Licensing Team Leader

Trudi Angel Corporate and Democratic Support Officer (minutes)

The meeting began at 7.35 pm

1. MINUTES

The minutes of the meetings held on 12 November 2019 and 14 January 2020 were
agreed by the members present and then signed by the Chairman.

2, APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received on behalf of Councillors Bowden and Rogers.
3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

4, PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

There was no public participation.
5. DRAFT TAXI AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING POLICY

N March introduced the report and explained that this draft policy was an
amalgamation of the various taxi related guidance documents that are currently in
place. He highlighted the key changes to the policy:

e Criminal records checks — a requirement to maintain a live check — cheaper
for licence holders, and better for the Council as can carry out checks
whenever necessary, rather than just on renewal as we do now. It is also
intended to contact the local police directly to make enquires about
applicants.

Paglje 3



o No temporary licences — if applicants do not get their documentation sorted in
time they would have to wait until this is all processed.

¢ No formal ‘grace period’, applicants will have to apply as new if applications
not submitted in time. Completed application within the required timescales.

¢ Significant training requirements are suggested in regards to disability
awareness and safeguarding. This is in line with other authorities around the
country.

e The policy indicates that the Council will sign up to the NR3 database, which
is a national database to check if applicants have been refused or revoked
elsewhere.

o The level of acceptable criminality that is considered acceptable has been
reduced, Page 95 of the reports show the changes, these are in line with the
Institute of Licensing’s recommendations, with the exception of a small
number that were already stronger in our existing policy.

e As the Council has declared a climate change emergency, a strong emissions
requirement has been included in the draft policy.

o Finally, the policy makes it clear that the council will look to digitalise as many
of its processes as possible, as the technology becomes available.

As this is a significant policy, 12 weeks is suggested as the length of consultation
when the committee is happy with the draft.

He welcomed questions from the committee.

Councillor Allen referred to the DBS update service and asked what the legalities
were, if any, in requiring drivers to register with it rather than go through the longer
process. N March advised that there was no issue with requiring them to do it, we
encourage them to do it especially as it is cheaper for them to do so. The guidance
from the Department of Transport is supportive of having them sign up for it as a
requirement and we are required to take that guidance in to account.

Councillor Allen asked if there was any consideration given to language barriers
when considering late applications and taking away temporary licences. N March
advised that all new drivers were required to take an English test if they didn’t have a
qualification up to a certain standard so that shouldn’t be an issue. He felt that it
wouldn’t be an acceptable reason as they should speak a certain level of English to
be suitable to be a taxi driver.

Councillor Allen asked if we would consider granting temporary licences to those with
exceptional circumstances for delays. N March said it could be considered but the
committee would need to be clear that is what it would be used for. He said we would
always look to be reasonable and wouldn’t want to penalise people for unfortunate
circumstances.

Councillor Johnson felt it was a good idea to make it clear that we do not licence
Uber drivers. N March said it would be made clear in the consultation that this policy
only applies to vehicles and drivers licenced by our authority.

Councillor Pringle said she welcomed the more frequent criminal record checks. She
asked what the sanctions were if the drivers didn’t inform us and if they were
reminded regularly to report information to us. N March advised we occasionally do
reminders in the Newsletter which is received by a third of our drivers. He said we do
find out eventually, usually when they renew, and if they haven’t told us when they

Pagze 4



were supposed to we would call them in for an interview, listen to their explanation
and they would receive a strike. If a driver receives three strikes they would have to
come before the sub-committee. He added that it does cause delays to their
application if they don’t advise us of incidents when they should.

Councillor Pringle queried if there was any way of linking up to the criminal justice
services to be informed directly of those with serious offences. N March advised that
the Police can tell us if they are aware of a serious incident but it is their decision if
they feel it is appropriate to tell us. Councillor Pringle asked if the Police were able to
check our databases to see if the person they were investigating was a taxi driver. N
March explained that the Police Officer investigating would have to have the
information or an indication that the person was a taxi driver but it wasn’t something
they could automatically check.

Councillor Bhinder said this was a fantastic piece of work and it was very reassuring
that DBC were moving forward. He then asked if the Safeguarding and Equality
training was carried out by DBC. N March said his intention was to work with the
Safeguarding Officer at DBC to deliver the training in house and he would look to
charge a fee to recover the costs. He advised that we didn’t have the expertise here
to deliver the training on Disabilities so we would need to source an external provider
for that.

Councillor Bhinder said he was delighted to see a section on emissions and
particularly paragraph 18.4 where it was stated that by 2025 all vehicles would be
expected to meet an electric hybrid standard. He asked how we enforced emission
control. N March advised that there wasn’t an emissions policy at present but when
that change is enforced we would need to keep our systems up to date so that we
could refuse licences if the vehicle doesn’t meet our standards.

Councillor Allen asked if there were any restrictions on idling engines. N March
advised there was a sentence within the policy that stated drivers shouldn’t leave
their engines running for longer than one minute.

Councillor Allen referred to the Equality training and asked if there was any way
include information to help drivers deal with hate crime and racism that often comes
with the trade. N March explained that the training would be supportive to drivers and
help with how to cope with challenging customers. He said drivers were always
encouraged to report any crimes because if they don’t we won’t know it is happening.

Councillor Allen said he understood that going digital was the way forward but asked
for reassurance that we would make sure everything was accessible for those
without internet access. N March advised that we were working towards digital
services but were still a long way off as we were constrained by the speed of the
Councils movement and systems being replaced. He gave reassurance that there
wouldn’t be an immediate change and therefore wouldn’t be a problem for those less
confident with technology.

Decision

The Licensing and Health and Safety and Enforcement Committee considered the
draft Policy and agreed for this to be consulted on for 12 weeks. The results of the
Consultation to be fed back at a future meeting of the Committee for consideration as
to the next steps.

The meeting finished at 8.08 pm.

Pa(f:je 5



Agenda Item 5

BOROUGH
COUNCIL

AGENDA ITEM: 5

SUMMARY

Report for:

Licensing, Health & Safety and
Enforcement Committee

Date of meeting:

21 July 2020

PART:

If Part Il, reason:

Title of report:

Review of Statement of licensing policy

Contact:

Nathan March — Licensing Team Leader, Corporate and
Contracted Services

Purpose of report:

To present draft revisions to the Council’s Statement of
Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003

Recommendations

That officers commence consultation with responsible
authorities, representatives of licence-holders and other
persons on the proposed revisions to the Council’'s Statement
of Licensing Policy under the Licensing Act 2003 and report
the results to a future meeting of the Committee.

Corporate
objectives:

A clean, safe and enjoyable environment

Ensuring efficient, effective and modern service delivery
Building strong and vibrant communities

Ensuring economic growth and prosperity

Implications:

Equalities
A Community Impact Assessment has been provided as part of

the report

Financial / Value for Money / Risk / Health & Safety
None arising.

Consultees:

This is a pre-consultation report. If the recommendation is
approved, the results of public consultation will be reported to a
future meeting of the Committee.

Page 6




1.

Draft Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Background Dacorum Borough Councils Licensing enforcement Policy -
papers: http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/environment-street-

care/licensing

Glossary of

acronyms and any
other abbreviations
used in this report:

BACKGROUND

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

1.7.

One of the major regulatory regimes under which the Council has statutory
responsibilities is the licensing of alcohol supplies, regulated entertainment
and late night refreshment under the Licensing Act 2003.

This Act requires licensing authorities (district councils or unitary authorities)
to publish a written ‘Statement of Licensing Policy’, setting out how they
intend to exercise the licensing and enforcement powers conveyed to them
under the Act, the principles that they will follow, and their expectations of
licensees. This policy must be periodically reviewed, so as to ensure that it
reflects the current legislation, and is relevant to the issues arising in the
authority’s area.

Dacorum last reviewed its licensing policy in 2015 (Licensing Act 2003) and it
is due for review and replacement by January 2021, in order to satisfy the
statutory requirements in the Act.

Officers have prepared revised licensing policy documents under the Act to
reflect the experiences of the licensing authority and address issues which
have emerged in this period. The major changes are summarised below.

The Committee are asked to approve consultation on the revised policy. The
Act specifies a number of requirements for consultation on policy change,
including lists of the categories of people who should be consulted, and the
consultation on the revised policy will be carried out with regard to these
requirements, and to the Government’s consultation principles.

An 8-week consultation period is proposed, in order to bring the results to the
Committee’s October meeting and Full Council in November.

The final decision to adopt or revise a licensing policy under the Act must be
made by Full Council. Following consultation, the Committee will be asked to
resolve to recommend the adoption of the revised policy (with any additional
revisions after considering the consultation responses) by the Council later
this year.

CHANGES TO STATEMENT OF LICENSING POLICY (LICENSING ACT 2003)

21.

The Licensing Authority has been involved in a number of cases which it
would be appropriate to reflect within its policy statement.

Page 7



http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/environment-street-care/licensing
http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/environment-street-care/licensing

2.2. Many of the changes that have been made are minor additions for
clarification purposes.

2.3. Pre-Application Advice (Section 15)

2.3.1.This section has been added to direct potential applicants to our Pre-
Application advice Policy, which was adopted last year.

2.4. Use of multiple Temporary Event Notices for single events

2.4.1. The Council has become aware that there is an increasing trend in the
use of multiple TENs to cover larger events, which can be done legally,
but prevents the use of conditions to help in the regulation of such
events.

2.4.2. The more common use of TENSs is for small one off events, for a
maximum number of 499 attendees (including staff etc), but organisers
are sometimes choosing to use one TEN to cover a bar area at a larger
event, and then another TEN to cover an area where regulated
entertainment such as music is taking place, allowing for up to 998
people to be present in the 2two areas so long as only 499 are present in
either one at any time.

2.4.3. This section has been added to highlight sensible steps that organisers
may wish to take if planning to take this approach.

3. RECOMMENDATION

3.1. That officers commence consultation with responsible authorities,
representatives of licence-holders and other persons on the proposed
revisions to the Council’'s Statement of Licensing Policy under the Licensing
Act 2003, and report the results to a future meeting of the Committee.

Page 8



Statement of Licensing Policy
under the Licensing Act 2003

BOROUGH 2021 - 2026

Date of publication

Version no. 1.0 DRAFT

Date of expiry

Working in partnership, to create a Borough which enables the communities of Dacorum to thrive and prosper

Affordable Housing 4 Regeneration ¢ Building Community Cacactcy 4 Safe and Clean Environment 4 Dacorum Delivers




Contents

Introductory INfOrMation .........iiiiiiiiiiieer e et r e e s sas s sseesssessasssssssssssssessssssssssssssanens 2
AN o To TU ) A B T olo T ¥ 1o o PSRRI 3
B Y o YoYU T d VI3 o Yol U 4 g =T o | TSP 5
Part A: EXErCiSiNG OUI POWELS ... cieeeuuiiiiennieiienneersensseessensssessensssessenssssssensssssssnsssssssnssssssssnsssssssnsssssssnsssssannns 8
T 1= o Y=Y o= | I oY [ Yol T o] 1= 9
N W10l LY- ] o] [T T 1YL =T PSPPI PPRP 10
T W Tol=Y o 1 = o] o] =T 6 V7L USRI 11
6. Licensing AULhOrity FUNCHIONS .......uviiiiiee e e e e et e e e e sae e e e e e aaree e e eenneeas 15
7. Responsible authorities and Other PErsONS ........oii i e e 16
8.  Representations aNd MBVIEWS .........eiiiiiiiieeeiiiee et e e et e e e tee e e e saree e e e st e e e s e e nbeeesesnsaeeeesnsreeeeennsens 19
S T 1o o] [ or- 1 4 o] o -3 P 20
10. [ Tol=Y o Ty [Vl o o YU TSP PP 22
11. (R Tol T Lol ole] oo [ o] o L3N OO PR P PTSTOPTRPRRTO 23
12. ENTOICEMENT Lottt ettt st st st e e e sab e e sbbeesabbeesabteesabaessabaesnaseesnneesases 26
13. EXchange of iNfOrmMation.........ccuviii i e e e e e 27
14. D= =] YT Y (ol T PP 27
Part B: Further conSiderations .........cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiiiiininininnnssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssses 28
15. (R Y o o] [Tor= [ a1 Yo V[ <D P SRR 29
16. CUMUIAEIVE TMPACT . ittt e et e e e e st e e e e seabeeeeesaabaeeeesanteeeessnteeeseenneeeeessne 29
17. YTl U [ xR S S PP PPTP PP PPPPPPP 31
18. Drugs and new psychoactive SUDSTANCES.......ueiiiiciiiei ittt e e e e s e e e e 33
19. (0] o] [ ol o 1= 1 1 O S S TP 34
20. Child sexual @XPloitation........eeiei i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e anraa e e e aaaeeeaan 35
21. (11 s I ol Y Tor= Y d o T o I O S USRI PP 37
22. L@ 1] e [T TN =Y o1 O PP PPUPPPRE 39
23. Use of multiple Temporary Event Notices for single events........ccccccuvvrireiiiei e, 39
24, Other relevant CONSIAEIatioNS ....c.uiiiii ittt rte e e e e st e e e s sabaeeessesbaeeessbraeeesaan 41
Part C: Other regulatory CONIOIS...........ciiiiiiiiiccccectereereee e ceeeeeeeeerennsseeeeseesesnnnssssssseseesesnnnsssssssassesennnnn 43
25. SPECIal HCENSING POICIES ..eeieiiiee ettt e et e e e et e e e e e sar e e e e e aaaeeeeesnsbeeeeennneeeeean 44
26. [210] o] [Tl oF: [ofc o] o] d=Totu o] s o] e [=Y 3PP 46
27. TSI Y=Y 11 4V PR 46
28. Planning and building CONTIOL........coociiiiii et e e e e e e e e ree e e e ares 47
29. [l geTagTeYuloT o Io) i =To [UF: | 1 YU PSP 48
30. (0oT 0}V T4 oL A =Ty ot o] o -SSPt 49
ANNEXES ..ueiiieneiiiiiieiiiitieiiittreit et reaaettteaaesttesasstteasssesteasssestesssssstesssssstesssssstesssssstennsssstennsssstenssssrens 50
Annex A — Delegation Of fUNCLIONS ......c..uiiiiieee e e e e e e e saae e e e e eareeas 51
ANNEX B — USEIUI FESOUITES ..ceiiiiiieiiiieteeeee ettt e e e e e e e a e e e e e e e e s e s abbbbeaaeeeeeeeeesastssbesaeeaaeeenessnsenns 53
ANNEX C — CoNtACT AETAIIS....uiiiiiiiiie et e e e e bee e e e e sabee e e e s snreeeeesnreeas 55

Hlustrations used (excluding Dacorum Borough Council branding elements and Operation HALO materials)
are sourced from pixabay.com and are subject to the Creative Commons Public Domain Dedication CCO

licence. We are grateful to the photographers for making their work available for use.

Page 10

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -1-


http://www.pixabay.com/

Introductory information

Page 11

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -2-



1. About Dacorum

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

Situated in western Hertfordshire, Dacorum is a borough with a mixture of strong urban and rural
identities. It includes the towns of Hemel Hempstead, Berkhamsted and Tring as well as a number of
villages, from Long Marston in the west to Flaunden in the south-east. Over a third of the borough’s
210 square kilometres have been designated as part of the Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty, while most of the rest has high landscape quality and potential.

o
Long Marston Markyate

o
O
Flamstead
. O
TI"II"Ig o Little Goddesden

O Aldbury

o
Wigginton

Berkhamsted o

o

Hemel Hempstead

O

Bovingdon .
- Kings Langle

O g5 gley

Chipperfield

o

One of the first ‘New Towns’ built after the Second World War, Hemel Hempstead’s development
reflects the original concept of the new town as a series of integrated communities with individual
identity and neighbourhood focus. The rapid growth of Hemel Hempstead is reflected in the large
number of buildings of similar age and appearance.

Much of the rest of the borough is rural, including two market towns: Berkhamsted and Tring.
Although agriculture is no longer a major employment sector in Dacorum, our communities value
their rural heritage, and the conservation of historic buildings and landscapes are important
considerations. We know that our communities expect good, modern services and thriving town
centres. Dacorum Borough Council works closely with the town and parish councils which represent
communities in rural areas of the borough, to deliver these aims.

Dacorum has a population of 144,800, the largest of the Hertfordshire districts. Further information
about Dacorum and the demographics of its populace can be found in the ‘Statistics about Dacorum’
area of the council’s website?.

The majority of the borough’s licensed premises fall in and around the main urban areas, with
particularly high concentrations of licences in Hemel Hempstead in the historic Old Town, and the
Jarman Fields leisure complex, as well as around the High Streets of Berkhamsted and Tring.

! Office of National Statistics, Census 2011 (published July 2012)
2 www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/community-living/statistics-about-dacorum

Page 12

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -3-


http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/community-living/statistics-about-dacorum

1.6.

1.7.

1.8.

Licensed premises can also be found in many of the community centres in outlying areas of Hemel
Hempstead, while village pubs and shops are prevalent in many of the more rural communities.

Dacorum is also home to a number of nationally recognised destinations and historic sites, with
places such as the Ashridge Estate, Berkhamsted Castle, the Snow Centre in Hemel Hempstead, and
Champneys in Tring attracting visitors from across the region.

The borough is continuing to develop, and with significant regeneration planned for much of the
borough and Hemel Hempstead in particular over the coming years, it is an exciting time for those
who live and work in the area. Licensed premises are expected to form a key part of these
regeneration plans3, and while it falls outside the remit of this document to specify exactly how those
plans will be achieved, the principles and policies set out within this document will give details of the
council’s expectations on how licensing applications will be viewed and considered, and of how we
will seek to preserve the balance between economic development and the protection of residents
and businesses from issues arising from the operation of licensed premises.

3 http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/regeneration/hemel-evolution

Page 13

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -4-


http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/regeneration/hemel-evolution

2. About this document

2.1.

2.2,

2.3.

2.4,

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

This document is Dacorum Borough Council’s statement of licensing policy in respect of the
regulation of alcohol supplies, regulated entertainment and late night refreshment, and publication
of it fulfils the authority’s statutory obligation under section 5 of the Licensing Act 2003 (“the Act”). It
sets out the policies and principles that we will follow when exercising our powers under that Act,
particularly in respect of considering applications in respect of licences and other authorisations. It
also gives details of our expectations of applicants and licence-holders. This statement must be
published on at least one occasion in each five-year period. The statement must also be kept under
review during its validity period, and revised if required, with any revisions published prior to taking
effect.

This statement of licensing policy was adopted by the Council on the xx xxxx 2020, and was published
via our website, at www.dacorum.gov.uk/licensing. The statement will have effect from 7 January
2021 to 6 January 2026.

This revised policy has been reviewed and updated to reflect the authority’s experiences in exercising
its powers that have taken place in the intervening period.

We are required to exercise our licensing functions under the Act with a view to promoting the
licensing objectives, which are:

) the prevention of crime and disorder,

° public safety,

° the prevention of public nuisance, and
° the protection of children from harm.

Each objective has equal importance, and they are explainedin greater detail in later chapters.

We must also have regard to our published statement of licensing policy, and to the Guidance for
licensing authorities published by the Secretary of State under section 182 of the Act.

The purpose of this statement is to provide guidance to committees and officers determining matters
under delegated authority, to provide consistency to our decision-making. However, where the
circumstances justify doing so, we may depart from any provision of this statement, or of the
Government’s Guidance, to make an appropriate decision based upon the individual circumstances
of a particular case. In any such case we will give a clear explanation and reasons as to why we have
done so.

This policy statement reflects the wide range of competing, and sometimes conflicting,
considerations which we must take into account when exercising our powers, and aims to balance
these insofar as is possible.

Our vision

2.9.

Licensing authorities are encouraged to include a vision statement within their licensing policies,
summarising the strategic aims and intentions that will guide the exercise of their licensing powers.
Dacorum’s vision statement is:

“To regulate the operation of a diverse range of safe, well-managed and enjoyable licensed leisure
and retail outlets throughout the Borough, offering a variety of entertainment, cultural and
community activities while also ensuring the promotion of the licensing objectives”.

Page 14

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -5-


http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/licensing

2.10. The inclusion of such a statement in no way fetters the authority’s discretion to determine cases on
their individual merits, but rather seeks to guide applicants as to the authority’s expectations of
licensed premises.

Page 15

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -6-



Interpretation

2.11. Within this policy statement:

a) “the Act” means the Licensing Act 2003,

b) “Licensing Authority” means Dacorum Borough Council,

¢) “Guidance” means the guidance to licensing authorities published by the secretary of state under
section 182 of the Act®.

Consultation

2.12. In producing this statement of licensing policy, the Licensing Authority has had regard to the licensing
objectives of the Licensing Act 2003, the Guidance issued by the secretary of state, and any views
expressed during our consultation upon the proposed statement.

2.13. We carried out consultation on a draft version of this statement of licensing policy, in accordance
with the provisions of section 5 of the Act, between 3 August 2015 and 27 September 2015. The
people and organisations we sought feedback from included:

e the responsible authorities, including Hertfordshire Constabulary, Hertfordshire Fire & Rescue
Service and Hertfordshire Public Health,

e individuals and organisations who hold premises licences, club premises certificates and personal
licences, issued by this authority,

e premises users who give temporary event notices (TEN’s) to this authority,

e representative bodies within the leisure and licensed retail trade industries,

e borough and county councillors,

e town and parish councils,

e the Members of Parliament for Hemel Hempstead and South West Hertfordshire,

e residents, businesses, and voluntary groups.

2.14. Views expressed in response to our consultation were considered prior to the determination of the
final version of this statement.

4 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-
licensing-act-2003

Page 16

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -7-


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003

Part A:
Exercising our powers

Page 1/

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -8-



3. General principles

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

3.4,

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

3.8.

The Act specifies a set of licensable activities, which may only be provided under an authorisation
issued by the relevant local Licensing Authority (Dacorum Borough Council for all premises within the
borough of Dacorum). The licensable activities, which are covered in greater detail within the next
section of this statement, include supplying alcohol, providing regulated entertainment, and
providing late night refreshment.

The types of authorisation which licensing authorities may issue to permit licensable activities
include premises licences, club premises certificates, temporary event notices, and personal licences.

In exercising its licensing functions under the Act, the Licensing Authority shall:

e aim to promote the licensing objectives,
e have regard to this statement of licensing policy, and
e have regard to the Government’s Guidance.

The Licensing Authority may not reject an application nor revoke a licence in response to
representations concerning general moral or ethical objections to the carrying on of licensable
activities, unless a direct link to one or more of the licensing objectives can be established. In
particular, the supply of alcohol is expressly permitted under UK legislation, and the Licensing
Authority has a duty to act fairly and in accordance with the legislation.

Every matter considered by the Council, in its role as a Licensing Authority, will be considered on its
own merits and in accordance with the statutory requirements of the Act. Nothing in this statement
of licensing policy shall:

a) prevent any person from making an application for authorisation or giving a notice under the Act;

b) prevent any person from making representation in respect of an application of a type where the
Act provides for them to do so;

c) prevent any person from making an application for the review of a premises licence; or

d) restrict or fetter the Council’s discretion to consider and determine applications, or to initiate
legal proceedings or other enforcement action, based upon the individual circumstances and
merits of a particular case.

Typically, the Licensing Authority’s discretion over whether to refuse applications, to issue counter-
notices or to impose additional licence conditions is only engaged if relevant representations or
objection notices have been given to the authority within a prescribed period. For many of the
application processes under the Act (with a small number of key exceptions), if no relevant
representations or objection notices are received within the prescribed period, the Licensing
Authority will be obliged to grant the application, subject only to any statutory conditions and
conditions consistent with measures proposed by the applicant in their operating schedule.

The Licensing Authority also has a general duty under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 “to exercise
its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions on, and the
need to do all that it reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder in its area”.

Dacorum Borough Council is a signatory of the Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership’s
‘Better Business For All’ charter®, and we will follow the provisions of the charter when we exercise
our regulatory powers in respect of licensable activities.

5 http://www.hertfordshirelep.com/Better-Regulation.aspx

Page 18

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -9-


http://www.hertfordshirelep.com/Better-Regulation.aspx

4. Licensable activities

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

The Act regulates a set of broad ‘licensable activities’ relating to the leisure and retail industries, as
follows:

e Supplies of alcohol, including:
o Sale by retail of alcohol,
o Supply of alcohol by or on behalf of a club to, or to the order of, a member of the club,

e The provision of regulated entertainment, comprising:
o Performances of plays,
Exhibitions of films,
Indoor sporting events,
Boxing and wrestling entertainments,
Performances of live music,
Playing of recorded music,
Performances of dance,
Entertainment which is similar to music or dance,

O O O O O O O

e The provision of late night refreshment.

To be considered licensable, entertainment must be provided in the presence of an audience (which
may consist of a single person), and either be open to the public or a section thereof, or provided for
a consideration (e.g. admission fee, tickets) and with a view to profit. The definitions of these
activities were left deliberately wide so as to account for future developments in the industries
carrying on those activities — for example in recent years there has been an increase in the number of
‘silent discos’, which are considered to be regulated entertainment as they consist of recorded music,
but which may not have been captured under a narrower definition.

In recent years, the Government has pursued a deregulatory agenda in respect of entertainment
licensing for community events and lower-impact entertainments by introducing new exemptions. As
a result, many smaller-scale entertainments now fall outside of licensing requirements. Where this is
the case, it should be noted that we may be unable to use our licensing powers to regulate these
events, although other regulatory schemes may be utilised to remedy any issues that arise.

Schedule 1 to the Act details the exemptions that apply to entertainment licensing requirements.

Late night refreshment is defined as the sale of hot food or hot drinks, between the hours of 11 p.m.
and 5 a.m. Exemptions applying to late night refreshment are set out in schedule 2 to the Act.

Although the Act has fairly wide application, it does not control every activity which may be carried
out in licensed premises, and some premises which are authorised under this Act may also need
separate licences and authorisations for other activities carried on at those premises. Where the
Licensing Authority is responsible for issuing such authorisations (for example, for gaming machines
or prize gaming in licensed premises), we have published separate licensing policies to give details of
how applications for those alternate licence types will be considered.

Page 19

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -10-



5. Licensing objectives

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

Licensing authorities must carry out their functions with a view to promoting the four licensing
objectives, which are:

e the prevention of crime and disorder,

e public safety,

e the prevention of public nuisance, and
e the protection of children from harm.

Each objective has equal importance.

It is recognised that the licensing function is only one means of securing the delivery of the above
objectives and should not therefore be seen as a means for solving all local problems. The Licensing
Authority will therefore continue to work in partnership with its neighbouring authorities, the police,
local businesses and local people towards the promotion of the licensing objectives as outlined.

The Licensing Authority expects applicants to address the licensing objectives within their operating
schedules, having regard to the nature of the premises, the licensable activities to be provided,
operational procedures, the nature of the location and the needs of local communities. The
operating schedule should contain sufficient information to enable the Licensing Authority,
responsible authorities and other persons who may be affected by the operation of a licensed
premises to assess whether the steps which will be taken to promote the licensing objectives are
sufficient to negate any potential adverse impact.

The Licensing Authority is committed to empowering local community action, and meeting the needs
of its communities through close partnership working with others. The Licensing Authority recognises
that licensed entertainment can provide a valuable contribution towards the economy of the
Borough, and seeks to balance the needs of the local business holders and licensees, whilst
protecting those of local residents.

Further policy considerations in respect of each of the objectives are set out below.

Crime and disorder

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

When considering applications and reviews the Licensing Authority will give consideration to:

e whether the premises make or will make a significant contribution to levels of crime and disorder
in the local area, and

o whether the operating schedule demonstrates that an adequate risk assessment of the likelihood
of crime and disorder occurring as the result of the issue of an authorisation has been carried out
by the applicant.

The authority will work closely with Hertfordshire Constabulary and the other members of the
Dacorum Community Safety Partnership, both to monitor and investigate incidents of crime or
disorder associated with licensable activities at and around licensed premises, and to identify
emerging trends and patterns in such incidents.

To achieve the best results, the prevention of crime and disorder requires partnership working
between statutory bodies and licensed premises. While there are a number of measures which
licence-holders can, and will be expected to, implement in order to promote this objective within
their premises, the authority also expects licence-holders to understand which issues they will not be

Page 20

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -11-



able to resolve themselves, and to liaise and co-operate with the Licensing Authority, police, and
other bodies. In particular, incidents occurring outside of but in the vicinity of licensed premises,
which do not involve the customers or staff from that premises, are likely to be outside of the direct
control of licence-holders, but they may be able to provide evidence or intelligence allowing
statutory bodies to investigate the incident in question.

Public safety

5.9.

5.10.

5.11.

When considering this objective, the Licensing Authority will concern itself with the physical safety
and wellbeing of the people who use licensed premises, and those who may be affected by the use of
licensed premises (e.g. non-customers who happen to be in the immediate vicinity of a premises).
This will include measures that seek to prevent accidents, injuries and short- or long-term illnesses to
staff, customers or other persons.

There are several regulatory regimes concerned with public safety, and the Licensing Authority will
seek to avoid duplication with these insofar as is possible. In particular, we will not duplicate
obligations placed upon licence-holders under the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 or the
Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 (which is discussed further later in this Statement).
However, where representations are made by responsible authorities responsible for enforcing these
regimes concerning the failure of a licence-holder to adhere to or comply with another regime, the
Licensing Authority may consider whether this is indicative of a wider systemic failure on the part of
the licence-holder to promote the licensing objectives.

Where a premises is providing high-risk activities ancillary to licensable activities, or is utilising special
effects in conjunction with a licensable activity, such as the use of lasers, pyrotechnics, dry ice, smoke
machines, foam machines or strobe lighting during an entertainment performance, the Licensing
Authority expects that all necessary equipment and materials will be under the control of a suitably-
trained and experienced individual, and for a suitable risk assessment to have been carried out prior
to use.

Public nuisance

5.12.

5.13.

5.14.

The Licensing Authority will interpret the term ‘public nuisance’ widely, and when considering this
objective will take into account issues relating to noise, vibration, light, litter, offensive odours and
anti-social behaviour arising from or in connection with the provision of licensable activities.

This objective does not mean the complete prevention of all of the above issues, but rather the
prevention of such unreasonable levels of these as would constitute a nuisance to the public or a
section thereof. A degree of noise, for example, is an inevitable consequence of the provision of most
forms of regulated entertainment. The Licensing Authority will therefore seek to exercise its powers
in a way which promotes the licensing objective, to discourage and eliminate the carrying on of
licensable activities in a way that causes unreasonable inconvenience, upset or distress to others.

The Authority notes that, as with other licensing objectives, other regulatory regimes exist which
may be used by statutory bodies to control the adverse effects of these issues, and will seek to avoid
duplication with these regimes. The Environmental Protection Act 1990 in particular allows
environmental health officers to require the abatement of a statutory nuisance, and would be
considered the primary control for such issues. However, the Licensing Authority also notes that this
regime is largely reactive, whereas licensing may be used to establish proactive controls, preventing
a nuisance from reaching a statutory level in the first instance.

Page 21

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -12-



5.15.

5.16.

5.17.

5.18.

5.19.

Where representations are made by a responsible authority with nuisance prevention obligations,
advising that restrictions may be necessary to prevent a nuisance from arising, the Licensing
Authority will consider the imposition of conditions or the modification of operating schedules as it
considers necessary to promote this licensing objective.

Nuisance may arise directly as a result of licensable activities (for example, noise from music), or
indirectly (noise from customers at the premises). Applicants and licence-holders are strongly
encouraged to consider all possible sources of nuisance when compiling operating schedules, and to
implement appropriate measures for the promotion of this objective. For many types of nuisance,
this process will begin in the initial design stages prior to the construction or redevelopment of
premises. The Council’s Regulatory Services officers may be consulted for informal advice, prior to
the making of a licence application, on proposed measures likely to reduce or prevent the likelihood
of public nuisance arising from the operation of licensed premises.

The Licensing Authority will have regard to best practice guidance when considering this licensing
objective, including but not limited to:®

e Guidelines on Community Noise (World Health Organisation)
e Effective Management of Noise from Licensed Premises (British Beer and Pub Association)
e Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts (Noise Council)

Where premises which are the subject of licensing applications involving amplified musical
entertainment beyond 11pm are in close proximity to residential properties, the Licensing Authority
will require a comprehensive operating schedule listing measures that the applicant intends to
implement to ensure the promotion of this licensing objective.

The Licensing Authority will also pay close regard to premises in close proximity to residential
property proposing or permitted to trade after 11pm, where the premises includes one or more
external areas for use by customers (for example, beer gardens, external dining areas, or smoking
areas), as use of such areas by customers has the potential to lead to a public nuisance if not closely
controlled. Applicants are required to include measures within their operating schedule setting out
how they intend to control the use of such areas, in order to promote this licensing objective.

Protection of children

5.20.

5.21.

The Licensing Authority is aware that this objective relates primarily to preventing children from
being exposed to or permitted to access age-restricted products, such as alcohol; or age-restricted
services, such as films with content deemed suitable only for adults or relevant entertainment of a
sexual nature. Considerations relating to the physical safety and welfare of children will also be taken
into account as part of any action the authority takes to promote the public safety objective.

There is no reason why children should not be admitted to responsibly-run, family-oriented licensed
premises (for example, restaurants, theatres, cinemas (showing age-appropriate films),
supermarkets, community premises, etc), when accompanied by as suitable adult, such as a parent
or guardian, and the Act allows for this. However, it is an offence under the Act:

e to admit children to exhibitions of films where a premises holds a licence permitting such
regulated entertainment, if they are below the minimum age recommended by the Licensing
Authority or a film classification body,

e toallow unaccompanied children under the age of 16 to be present at premises being used
exclusively or primarily for the supply of alcohol for consumption on those premises, or

6 See Annex B for links to these documents

Page 22

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -13-



5.22.

5.23.

5.24.

5.25.

5.26.

5.27.

e to allow unaccompanied children under 16 to be present between midnight and 5 a.m. at
licensed premises supplying alcohol for consumption on the premises.

The Licensing Authority will only look to impose further restrictions beyond those set out above
prohibiting access to premises by children if it considers it appropriate to do so, to protect the child
from a relevant type of harm.

The Licensing Authority will judge each application and the circumstances pertaining to each
premises on the individual merits. Examples which may give rise to concern in respect of children
would include premises:

e where entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature are commonly provided,

e where there have been convictions of members of the current staff at the premises for serving
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for underage drinking,

e where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises (but not, for example the simple
presence of a small number of gaming machines),

e where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the exclusive or primary purpose
of the services provided at the premises, or

e where other concerns relating to this objective have arisen.

Alternative options to limiting access by children may include, but are not limited to:

e limits on the hours when children may be present,

e limits or exclusions on children when particular activities are taking place,

e limited access to parts of premises, or

e full exclusion of under-18s from the premises when any licensable activities are taking place.

Where a large number of children are likely to be present at a licensed premises, the Licensing
Authority will expect an appropriate number of suitably-trained adult staff to be present, to control
access and egress of children, and ensure their safety and protection from harm.

Even if the age restrictions mentioned above do not apply and the Licensing Authority has not
attached conditions restricting access by children, there is still no obligation for licence-holders to
admit children to their premises. Ultimately access to premises will remain at the discretion of the
licence-holder, who may choose to adopt any reasonable admission policy.

Child sexual exploitation is a significant concern for licensing authorities nationwide, as
demonstrated by a number of high-profile reported cases which revolved around licensed premises.
Where the operation of licensed premises is causally or demonstrably linked to child sexual
exploitation, the Licensing Authority will not hesitate to use the full range of powers at its disposal to
promote this licensing objective. Further details regarding this issue are given later in this document.

Page 23

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -14-



6. Licensing Authority functions

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

Licensing authorities have statutory responsibilities under the Act for:

e the authorisation of premises where licensable activities are to take place, through the issue of
premises licences;

e the preliminary authorisation of premises for proposed licensable activities, through the issue of
provisional statements;

e the authorisation of club premises where qualifying club activities are to take place, through the
issue of club premises certificates;

e the review of premises licence and club premises certificates, at the request of a responsible
authority or other person;

e the authorisation of individuals to authorise supplies of alcohol at licensed premises, through the
issue of personal licences;

e the receipt and endorsement of temporary event notices, authorising infrequent licensable
activities;

e investigating and taking enforcement action in respect of allegations on unlicensed activities, or
activities carried out otherwise than in accordance with an authorisation or the legislation;

e the exchange of information with Government regarding details of applications, licences and
notices and enforcement issues; and

e the maintenance of registers of the applications and notices received, and licences and
certificates issued, by the authority.

The Licensing Authority has delegated its functions under the Act to the Licensing, Health & Safety
and Enforcement Committee. In turn the Committee has delegated the exercise of these functions as
summarised in the table at Annex A, to:

e the Licensing of Alcohol and Gambling Sub-Committee, to consider contested applications and
notices, and review proceedings, and

e licensing officers, to deal with the day-to-day administration of applications, the grant of
uncontested applications, and compliance and enforcement issues.

The scheme of delegation does not preclude officers from referring a particular matter back to the
Sub-Committee, nor the Sub-Committee from referring a matter back to the full Committee.

There are three functions which must be exercised by the Council, and cannot lawfully be delegated.
These are the adoption of a statement of licensing policy (although the Committee may undertake
preparatory work and make recommendations to Council), the making of an early morning alcohol
restriction order, and the adoption of a late night levy requirement (discussed later).

Duplication of other regulatory regimes, such as health and safety or fire safety, will be avoided in so
far as is possible. In particular, this authority will not consider whether a premises that is the subject
of a licensing application is likely to be awarded planning permission or building regulations approval,
in its consideration of that application. This authority will though, listen to, and consider carefully,
any concerns about proposed conditions that would be contrary to pre-existing planning restrictions,
should such a situation arise.

Page 24

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -15-



7. Responsible authorities and other persons

7.1. Responsible authorities and other persons can make representations about certain premises licence
and club premises certificate applications, or apply for a review of an existing licence or certificate.
They include statutory bodies with professional expertise relevant to the regulation of licensable
activities, and local residents and businesses that may be affected by the provision of such activities.

Responsible authorities

7.2. Under the Act, a number of statutory bodies are specified as ‘responsible authorities’. These bodies
are ones whose duties and responsibilities may affect licensed businesses within the borough, or
who have separate regulatory powers allowing for the control of one or more aspects of those
businesses. They include:

e the Licensing Authority, and any other Licensing Authority responsible for part of a premises
which lies across authority boundaries,

e Hertfordshire Constabulary

e Hertfordshire Fire & Rescue Service

e Hertfordshire Public Health

e Dacorum Regulatory Services

e Dacorum Local Planning Authority

e Hertfordshire Trading Standards (weights and measures authority)

e Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board

e Health & Safety Executive (for premises where HSE is the enforcing authority under the Health
and Safety at Work Act 1974 only)

e Canal & Rivers Trust, Environment Agency, and the Secretary of State (for vessels only)

7.3. Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in some cases it is likely that
a particular responsible authority will be the Licensing Authority’s main source of advice in relation to
a particular licensing objective. For example, the police have a key role in managing the night-time
economy and should have good working relationships with those operating in their local area. The
police should usually therefore be the Licensing Authority’s main source of advice on matters relating
to the promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective. However, any responsible authority
under the 2003 Act may make representations with regard to any of the licensing objectives if they
have evidence to support such representations.

7.4. The Licensing Authority is required by sections 13(4)(f), 69(4)(f) and 172B(4)(i) of the Act to designate
a body which represents those who are responsible for or interest in matters relating to the
protection of children from harm, and which the authority considers competent to advise it about
these matters. For the purposes of these sections, the Licensing Authority recognises the
Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board as a responsible authority in connection with any
application for a premises licence or club premises certificate, or a proposal to make an early
morning alcohol restriction order.

7.5. Where an application is made in respect of a vessel, additional responsible authorities will be
consulted in respect of that application. These include navigation authorities for the waterway(s)
where the vessel will be while it is used for the provision of licensable activities, the Environment
Agency, the Canal and Rivers Trust, and the Secretary of State. Waterways running through Dacorum
include the Grand Union Canal, and the Rivers Gade and Bulbourne, although the latter two are
unnavigable.

Page 25

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -16-



Other persons

7.6.

7.7.

7.8.

7.9.

7.10.

7.11.

7.12.

7.13.

In addition to responsible authorities, any other person may make representation in respect of an
application which is subject to public notice requirements, or apply for a review of a premises licence
or club premises certificate. As well as people who live or work near licensed premises, this provision
also allows any company, charity, community organisation or similar body, to make representations
and apply for reviews in their own right.

Representations and review applications may also be made by persons who are democratically
elected, such as borough, county, town or parish councillors, or an MP. Such representatives are free
to make representations and review applications in their own right, and no specific evidence of being
asked to represent any other person will be required.

The Licensing Authority will consider all representations or review applications received from persons
other than responsible authorities, but may reject and disregard a representation or application, in
whole or in part, if it believes that:

e arepresentation or ground for review is frivolous,

e arepresentation or ground for review is vexatious,

e arepresentation is not relevant to the likely effect of the grant of the application on the
promotion of the licensing objectives,

e aground for review is not relevant to one or more of the licensing objectives;

e aground for review is a repetition of a ground for review or a representation made in respect of
an earlier application for the same licence or certificate, where a reasonable interval has not
elapsed since the earlier application.

For the purposes of the previous paragraph, the Licensing Authority will typically consider that a
period of 12 months between review or other applications will constitute a reasonable interval,
although the authority may consider evidence as to why it should use a shorter time period on a
case-by-case basis.

When considering whether a representation or ground is frivolous or vexatious, the authority will
consider the ordinary dictionary definitions of these terms. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list
of what may cause the authority to exclude a representation or ground under these provisions, but
examples may include relying on a matter with no relevance to the licensing objectives (for example,
the effect of an application on nearby house prices) or a matter which is unrelated to the operation
of the premises concerned (for example, litter repeatedly left on a pavement near a premises which
is unconnected to that premises).

Persons with business interests within a similar trade sector as the subject of their representation (or
review application) will be expected to satisfy the Licensing Authority that their representation (or
application) is not made vexatiously with the intent of limiting competition to their own business.
This will typically be by way of suitable and sufficient evidence within their representation or review
application to support the claims that are being made and evidence how they are linked to the
subject business.

The Licensing Authority must also reject any representation which was not given to the authority
within the prescribed period for the associated application (typically 28 days for most applications,
although minor variation applications and summary/closure order reviews are subject to shorter
periods —in all cases, the final date for the submission of representations will be displayed on public
notices at or near the premises and in a local newspaper, which will be checked by the authority).

Dacorum borough councillors who have agreed to represent a party to an application at a hearing, or

Page 26

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -17-



who have made a representation in their own right, shall not sit on any Sub-Committee considering
that application.

Page 2/

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -18-



8. Representations and reviews

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

Where a right exists for a responsible authority or other person to make representations in respect of
an application, any representation must be made in writing (whether by letter, fax or email), and
must contain the name and address of the party making the representation, together with any
relevant information to assist the Licensing Authority in determining their status. The grounds upon
which the representation is made should also be clearly set out.

Our preferred means of receiving representations is by email, to licensing@dacorum.gov.uk.
However, we will continue to accept any valid written representation submitted by alternate means.

Representations may encompass a variety of views about an application, and may include comments
or grounds which are supportive of an application, objecting to an application, or neutral about an
application. The Licensing Authority will treat all relevant representations in the same manner,
regardless of their stance.

Applications for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate may only be made in the
prescribed form, and following the procedure set out in the Act. Licensing officers are able to offer
further advice on this procedure to any party considering making an application for review of a
licence.

The Licensing Authority must have reasonable grounds in order to take action to refuse, to revoke or
to suspend a licence. This means that it will usually need to see evidence which substantiates the
grounds cited in representations or review applications if it is to act upon those grounds. Speculative
grounds which cannot be substantiated have previously been found by the courts to carry little
weight in the decision-making process, and it is therefore likely that the Licensing Authority would be
unable to take action of a type referred to above if such grounds are the only ones cited in respect of
an application.

Page 28

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -19-


mailto:licensing@dacorum.gov.uk

9. Applications

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

9.7.

Every matter requiring determination by the Licensing Authority will be considered on its individual
merits, and in doing so the authority shall have regard to this Statement, the Guidance, and the need
to promote the licensing objectives. Where applicable, an evidentiary hearing will be conducted prior
to the determination of the matter, in full accordance with Regulations made under the Act.

Many application types are subject to a statutory provision whereby they must be granted in the
absence of relevant representations. In such cases, licences must be issued for the full range of
licensable activities applied for, subject only to applicable mandatory conditions, and conditions
which are consistent with measures set out by the applicant within their operating schedule.

Where the authority’s discretion is engaged, following receipt of a relevant representation or an
objection notice, or in the case of review or minor variation applications, the Licensing Authority will
apply the considerations set out below.

Almost all of the decision-making powers under the Act require licensing authorities to take such
action as they consider appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The Act was
amended to substitute ‘appropriate’ for ‘necessary’, a move which may be regarded as having
increased authorities discretion in respect of the determination of applications. The Licensing
Authority will now consider ‘appropriate’ in accordance with the standard dictionary definition:
“suitable or proper in the circumstances”.”

The Licensing Authority strongly encourages dialogue between applicants (or licence-holders) and
persons affected or concerned about proposals within a licence application. In many cases, such
concerns can be resolved informally, without the need for a hearing. Where parties give their
consent, the Licensing Authority may facilitate mediation between parties to a prospective hearing,
to explore whether an informal resolution can be achieved.

When considering applications for a new licence, or a variation of an existing licence, the options
available to the authority will generally include: granting the application as applied for, granting the
application with amendments to the operating schedule or additional conditions, or refusing the
application. The last of these options is clearly the most serious, and the authority will only look to
refuse applications where it is satisfied that the proposed activities could not be carried on, even
with modifications or additional restrictions, without a detrimental effect to the licensing objectives.

The options available when considering premises licence or club premises certificate applications will
include the restriction of licensed hours or the imposition of additional conditions, which may be
considered appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. These powers are considered in
greater detail in the following chapters.

Minor variations

9.8.

The Act provides a simplified method for making changes to an existing premises licence or club
premises certificate which will not adversely impact upon the licensing objectives, and which do not
involve:

e asubstantial variation to the applicable premises,
e authorising alcohol supplies for the first time,
e increasing the permitted hours for the supply of alcohol,

7 http://www.oxforddictionaries.com/definition/english/appropriate

Page 29

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -20-


http://www.oxforddictionaries.com/definition/english/appropriate

9.9.

9.10.

9.11.

9.12.

9.13.

9.14.

e transposing permitted hours for the supply of alcohol to have effect between 11 p.m. and 7 a.

e extending the validity period of a time-limited licence (this can only be achieved through the
grant of a new licence),

m.,

e changing the individual specified as the designated premises supervisor (a dedicated application

type is available for changes of this type), or
e substituting the alternate licence condition for community premises (a dedicated application
type is available for changes of this type).

Changes of a type listed above, or which may bring about an adverse impact on the licensing
objectives, are not eligible for a minor variation application and must instead be made via a full
variation application (unless otherwise indicated).

The type of changes that the authority will generally consider appropriate to be made via a minor
variation application will include, but are not limited to:

e Internal reorganisation of a premises, including the relocation or removal of fixed or static

furniture, where there is no significant change to the overall size or location of the licensed area;

e Removal or modification of outdated, unclear or unenforceable conditions;

e Removal, modification or addition of other conditions, with the prior agreement of relevant
responsible authorities;

e Amendment of opening hours, with no change to the times during which licensable activities

may be provided (e.g. to allow a premises to carry on non-licensable activities during breakfast

trade); or
e Reduction of permitted times for licensable activities, or removal of activities the premises no
longer intends to provide.

The authority may consider accepting other types of change within a minor variation application on a
case-by-case basis, so long as they will not contravene the principles set out at para 9.8. Applicants

are welcome to contact licensing officers for pre-application advice.

Unlike other application types, the absence of relevant representations will not prevent the authority

from exercising its discretion in respect of a minor variation application. Minor variations must be
refused, irrespective of any representations received, if the authority believes that the proposed

changes, individually or cumulatively, could have an adverse effect on any of the licensing objectives.

Where a minor variation application is refused on grounds that the proposed change may adversely
affect the licensing objectives, the applicant may submit a full variation application in respect of the

proposed change, for consideration by the authority following a full public consultation process.

The power to consider minor variation applications has been delegated to the authority’s officers,

who will determine all such applications. The short time periods which apply to applications of this

type preclude the arrangement of Sub-Committee meetings to consider such matters.

Page 30

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

-21-



10. Licensing hours

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

10.5.

10.6.

10.7.

10.8.

Flexible hours for licensable activities and particularly the sale of alcohol can help to ensure that
large concentrations of customers leaving premises simultaneously are avoided. Requiring a number
of similar premises to close at the same time could lead to friction at late night food outlets, taxi
ranks, transport hubs and other ‘pinch points’. By encouraging a staggered approach to closing times,
it is possible to achieve a steadier dispersal of patrons from town centres, with fewer incidents of
disorder and disturbance.

For this reason, the Licensing Authority will not seek to impose rigid terminal hours on premises in
particular areas (a concept known as zoning), which is considered likely to increase the potential for
crime, disorder and nuisance. That said, if the authority becomes aware of a proliferation in disorder
or nuisance in a particular area linked cumulatively to the operations of licensed premises, it may
consider imposing restrictions on opening hours through the use of its various powers, including
early morning alcohol restriction orders.

Licensing hours should not inhibit the development of a thriving and safe evening and night time
economy. This is important for investment, local employment, tourism and local services associated
with the night time economy. Providing consumers with greater choice and flexibility is an important
consideration, but should always be balanced carefully against the duty to promote the licensing
objectives and the interests of local residents.

The Licensing Authority expects that issues relating to licensing hours, and in particular measures to
limit the potential for nuisance or disorder arising from later hours of trading, will be addressed by
the applicant in their operating schedule.

In addition to their licensable activities, applicants are also expected to set out the proposed opening
hours of their premises within their operating schedule. The Licensing Authority expects these times
to be provided for all premises which may be accessed by members of the public, as these will inform
the authority, responsible authorities and other persons of the full extent of the operation of the
premises, and allow all parties to consider the application and the effect on the licensing objectives
fully. The hours given should include all times when the premises may trade to the public (whether
licensable activities are being provided or not), when individuals may be present on the premises.

At premises licensed to supply alcohol for consumption on the premises, the Licensing Authority
encourages the inclusion of a ‘cooling-off’ or ‘drinking-up’ period between the terminal hour for
supplies of alcohol, and the end of other licensable activities, typically of around 20 to 30 minutes.
Inclusion of such a measure will ensure patrons have the opportunity to finish their drinks and gather
their belongings prior to leaving the premises. This should be indicated within the timings given in
the operating schedule for supplies of alcohol and opening hours. Where music is being played,
applicants may also wish to consider a slower tempo of music within this period.

Shops, stores and supermarkets will generally be permitted to sell alcohol for consumption off the
premises throughout the normal hours they intend to open for shopping, unless there are good
reasons, based on the licensing objectives, for restricting those hours; for example, a limitation may
be appropriate following police representations in the case of shops known to be a focus of disorder
and disturbance. Where alcohol hours are shorter than opening hours, premises should ensure that
robust systems are in place to prevent the sale of alcohol before or after permitted times.

The Licensing Authority will deal with the issue of licensing hours on the individual merits of each
application. However, when issuing a licence, stricter conditions are more likely to be considered
appropriate for the promotion of the public nuisance objective in the case of premises that are
situated in predominantly residential areas.

Page 31

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -22-



11. Licence conditions

11.1.

11.2.

11.3.

11.4.

11.5.

The Licensing Authority will seek to avoid imposing disproportionate conditions on premises. It will
only impose conditions that it considers appropriate in order to promote the licensing objectives, and
which are in themselves reasonable and proportionate.

Additionally, we will seek to ensure that conditions only pertain to matters which are within the
direct control or the sphere of influence of the licence-holder, generally this will mean within the
premises, or in the nearby vicinity

When we set conditions, we will follow the SMART methodology, and aim to ensure that the
conditions are:

e Specific — directly related to the premises and the licensable activities carried on; the condition
clearly and unambiguously states what is required of the licence-holder;

e Measurable — that it is possible to confirm whether the condition is being satisfied; if compliance
cannot be readily verified, it is likely that a court will rule a condition is unenforceable;

e Achievable — that the licence-holder is able to satisfy the measures required to comply with the
requirement: it is not something which is outside his control;

e Reasonable — that the condition does not place unachievable, disproportionate or unrealistic
requirements on the licence-holder;

e Time-bound — where appropriate (for example, if substantial new equipment will have to be
purchased and installed) a time period will be stated for the licence-holder to achieve
compliance with the requirement.

We will also have regard to the work undertaken by the Institute of Licensing with regards licence
conditions, and any guidelines that they issue.?

Lengthy lists of licence conditions are not viewed as particularly desirable, as they make it difficult for
licence-holders and regulators alike to readily verify compliance with the licence. Where the
authority is of the opinion that a substantial number of conditions are needed, consideration should
be given firstly to whether the applicant is a suitable person to hold a licence, given that the effect of
the numerous conditions will be to micromanage his business. In such circumstances, the authority
must consider whether refusal of a licence would be a more appropriate decision to take.

Conditions on premises licences

11.6.

Conditions on premises licences will fall into one of three categories, and will be contained in one of
three annexes to the licence:

e Annex 1 contains mandatory conditions, which licensing authorities are required to add to
licences if certain conditions are met. Mandatory conditions are all transposed directly from the
legislation, and the authority may not modify or disapply these conditions.

e Annex 2 contains conditions consistent with the operating schedule. These conditions will be
compiled by the authority’s officers (even if a case was ultimately determined by a Committee)
based on the measures set out by the applicant within their operating schedule, including any
modifications volunteered by the applicant following discussions with the Licensing Authority,
responsible authorities, or other persons. When compiling conditions in this annex, the authority
will not simply reproduce the operating schedule, but will convert the measures it contains into a
number of clear, relevant and enforceable conditions.

8 http://www.instituteoflicensing.org/content.aspx?page=GUIDANCE_ON_PREMISES_LICENCE_CONDITIONS

Page 32

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -23-


http://www.instituteoflicensing.org/content.aspx?page=GUIDANCE_ON_PREMISES_LICENCE_CONDITIONS

e Annex 3 contains any other conditions imposed by a licensing committee when it determines an
application. These conditions comprise any requirements over and above the operating schedule
that a committee decided were appropriate to promote the licensing objectives, when they
determined the application.

11.7. The mandatory conditions are prescribed in legislation, and are subject to periodic change. The
Licensing Authority has adopted an approach of not replacing licences following every change, but
rather making amendments when the licence is next returned to the authority for amendment. A full
schedule of the current mandatory conditions will be maintained on our website. Licence-holders
should be aware that mandatory conditions will apply to their licence, even if they are not printed
upon it, and as such are encouraged to periodically check for updates to the current conditions.

11.8. Licensing authorities may not impose conditions which restrict the nature, content or manner of
performances of plays provided under a premises licence, save to ensure the safety of the public.

Conditions on club premises certificates

11.9. Club premises certificates will generally be subject to similar conditions to premises licences, and the
provisions set out above will apply equally to authorisations of this type.

11.10.The Licensing Authority notes that it may not impose a condition which prevents the sale of alcohol
or the provision of regulated entertainment to associate members and their guests, where the club
rules provide for such.

Conditions on temporary event notices

11.11.Where an objection notice is received in respect of a standard temporary event notice and neither is
withdrawn, the Licensing Authority is obliged to conduct an evidentiary hearing into the proposed
event and the objections raised by a responsible authority. At the end of the hearing, the authority
must decide whether it is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives to issue a
counter-notice, which has the effect of cancelling the authorisation to carry on licensable activities
conveyed by the temporary event notice.

11.12.Where the authority has decided not to issue a counter-notice, and the temporary event notice is in
respect of premises authorised by a premises licence or club premises certificate, the Licensing
Authority may resolve to bring forward conditions from the licence or certificate and impose them
upon the temporary event notice, if it considers this appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives.

11.13.Any conditions brought forward will be replicated in the same form as used on the licence or
certificate, and will be imposed only if they address issues raised within objection notices given to
the authority. The authority will not utilise this power to condition or restrict aspects of the event
which are not referenced within an objection notice or supplementary representations.

11.14.1f the Licensing Authority is of the opinion that an event should not proceed, it will issue a counter-
notice. The power to impose conditions will not be utilised to impose conditions which are
inconsistent with the proposed event, or which are impossible for the premises user to comply with.

11.15.The Licensing Authority understands that it has no other power to impose conditions on temporary
event notices. Undertakings agreed between a premises user and a responsible authority to resolve

Page 33

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -24-



objections to a notice are unenforceable, and are therefore discouraged.

Page 34

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

-25-



12. Enforcement

12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

12.4.

12.5.

12.6.

12.7.

Licensing authorities are required to state the principles to be applied by the authority in exercising
enforcement functions under the Act, both in terms of the inspection of premises and in instituting
criminal proceedings in respect of specified offences.

The Licensing Authority will be led by the Guidance in respect of the inspection of premises and the
powers to institute criminal proceedings, and will endeavour to ensure that enforcement and
compliance actions are:

e Proportionate: regulators should only intervene when necessary: remedies should be
appropriate to the risk posed, and costs identified and minimised;

e Accountable: regulators must be able to justify decisions, and be subject to public scrutiny;

e Consistent: rules and standards must be joined up and implemented fairly;

e Transparent: regulators should be open, and keep regulations simple and user friendly;

e Targeted: regulation should be focused on the problem, and minimise side effects.

The Licensing Authority may arrange for the inspection of premises, both licensed and otherwise, in
response to specific complaints about those premises and the provision of unauthorised licensable
activities therein. The Licensing Authority may also, from time to time, arrange a programme of risk-
based inspections of licensed premises, consistent with the principles expressed throughout this
document. Should officers witness offences or breaches of an authorisation during an inspection,
appropriate action will be taken.

The Licensing Authority will also keep itself informed of developments as regards the work of the
Better Regulation Delivery Office in its consideration of the regulatory functions of local authorities.

In addition to this statement of principles, the Licensing Authority also maintains a licensing
enforcement policy, setting out further details of our methodologies. This can be viewed via our
website, at www.dacorum.gov.uk/licensing, or a copy obtained by contacting us using the details
given in Annex C. The Licensing Authority shall also have regard to any corporate enforcement policy
published by Dacorum Borough Council.

Where the power to make representations or initiate reviews on behalf of the Licensing Authority is
utilised, proper separation of functions will be ensured by having different officers conduct the
different functions (for example, if a licensing enforcement officer makes a representation, they will
have no involvement in the administration of the application itself).

A number of licence-holders with multiple outlets have formed primary authority partnerships, under
which they receive ‘assured advice’ from a single local authority in respect of one or more regulated
aspects of their business — for example, preventing underage sales of age-restricted products. Where
we have concerns around a premises whose operator has formed a primary authority partnership
relevant to the issue in question, we will consult with the primary authority prior to taking any formal
action.

Page 35

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -26-


http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/licensing

13.

13.1.

13.2.

13.3.

13.4.

Exchange of information

From time to time, licensing authorities are required to exchange information with other bodies —
whether this be the Government for the purpose of official statistics, responsible authorities and
other statutory bodies in respect of intelligence about possible breaches of licence conditions or
legislative requirements, or other persons following requests under data disclosure laws.

The principle that this Licensing Authority applies is that it will act in accordance with the provisions
of applicable legislation when exchanging information, which includes the provision that the Data
Protection Act 1998 will not be contravened.

Should any protocols be established as regards information exchange with other bodies then details
will be made available via our website, and incorporated into a future revision of this document.

Where required by law applicants will receive copies of any representations made in respect of their
application, although sensitive or personal information not required to be disclosed will usually be
redacted.

14. Digital services

14.1.

14.2.

We will carry out our functions with regard to the EU Services Directive and the Provision of Services
Regulations 2009, which give effect to the Directive within the UK. In particular we will:

e provide clear and concise guidance on our website explaining what activities licences and
permissions are required for, how they can be obtained and how we will consider applications
for such,

e encourage applications for licences which are in scope of the Directive to be made online via our
electronic application facility,

e apply the same considerations and requirements to applications from applicants based in EEA
member states other than the UK as we do for UK-based applicants.

Almost every type of application under the Act can be made online via our website,
www.dacorum.gov.uk/licensing. The exceptions to this are applications for personal licences, and for
reviews of premises licences and club premises certificates, which must be made using a paper
application form.

Page 36

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -27-


http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/licensing

Part B:
Further considerations

Page 37

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -28-



15.

15.1.

15.2.

15.3.

15.4.

15.5.

Pre-Application Advice

The Council’s Licensing team are available to provide what is known as pre-application advice. This is
a chargeable service

As applications for licences can be quite complex, and have a wide variety of requirements, it may be
beneficial to applicants to seek advice prior to completing and submitting an application. One
example that highlights the importance of getting the process right is the requirement to use a
newspaper notice to alert people of your application. Getting the advert details or timing wrong
could lead to the application being invalid, and the applicant losing the money spent on that notice;
obtaining advice from the Council is a good way to avoid this sort of mistake, which is not unusual
and easily made.

As well as ensuring the requirements are followed, the Licensing team can assist you in drafting a
good application, which ensures that you are applying for the full extent of the activities that you are
likely to require for your business, whilst avoiding inadvertently including or omitting information
that increases the likelihood of objections being received.

Objections to applications can lead to delays in licences being granted, and can cost time away from
your business in order to resolves any issues arising, so it is best that applicants do all that they can
to ensure that any unnecessary objections are avoided.

The Council’s Pre-application advice policy is available on our website at:
http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/environment-street-care/licensing/licensing-pre-application-
advice

16. Cumulative impact

16.1.

16.2.

16.3.

16.4.

Cumulative impact is the term used to describe the impact, potential or actual, of a large number of
licensed premises concentrated in a single locality. In terms of the licensing objectives, this may be
evidenced by an increase in incidents of crime, disorder or public nuisance, over and above the
impact of the individual premises themselves.

The cumulative impact of licensed premises on the promotion of any of the licensing objectives is a
matter that the Licensing Authority can take into account in determining its licensing policy. This
should not, however, be confused with any question of ‘need’ which relates to the commercial
demand for a particular type of premises (for example, a pub, restaurant or hotel). The issue of
‘need’ is a matter for market forces to influence and for the planning authority to regulate, and so
does not form part of this policy statement.

The Licensing Authority will not seek to introduce quotas of licensed premises, nor will it seek to
impose general limitations on trading hours in particular areas. Instead, consideration will be given to
the individual characteristics of the premises concerned within a given area. It is recognised that a
wide variety of venues sell alcohol, serve food and provide entertainment, but with contrasting styles
and characteristics. Proper regard will be had to those differences and the impact they are likely to
have on the local community.

The Licensing Authority notes that, in accordance with the Guidance, it may adopt a special policy in
response to a cumulative impact issue in a defined area. Consideration of such a policy may be
prompted by submissions from responsible authorities or other persons, evidenced appropriately
and linked to one or more of the licensing objectives. Where such a policy has been adopted, the

Page 38

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -29-



issue of cumulative impact can be taken into account when considering the individual merits of any
application within the area defined within that policy. Further details regarding this power are given
in the special licensing policies section of this Statement.

16.5. When dealing with cumulative impact issues, the Licensing Authority recognises that, as well as
licensing functions, there are a number of other mechanisms for addressing issues of nuisance,
disorder and anti-social behaviour occurring away from licensed premises. These may include:-

planning controls;

measures to provide a safer and cleaner environment in partnership with local businesses,
transport operators and other departments of the Council;

the provision of CCTV surveillance in town centres, taxi ranks, street cleaning and litter patrols;
powers for a local authority to protect public spaces from the effects of anti-social consumption
of alcohol, enabling police and accredited persons to confiscate alcohol;

enforcement of the law relating to disorder and anti-social behaviour, including the issue of fixed
penalty notices or other sanctions under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014;
the prosecution of any personal licence holder or member of staff at licensed premises who is
selling alcohol to children or people who are drunk;

powers to close down instantly any premises or temporary event on grounds of disorder, the
likelihood of disorder or noise emanating from premises causing a nuisance;

the power for responsible authorities or other persons to apply for a review of a premises licence
or club premises certificate; or

other local initiatives that similarly address these problems.

16.6. The Licensing Authority will also monitor and address such issues through engagement in the
Dacorum Community Safety Partnership.

Page 39

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -30-



17. Security

17.1.

17.2.

17.3.

17.4.

17.5.

Under a mandatory licence condition, any person engaged to work at licensed premises who is
carrying out a prescribed security activity, as specified under the Private Security Industry Act 2001,
must be correctly licensed to carry out that function by the Security Industry Authority, or otherwise
authorised under an approved contractor scheme or similar.

The Licensing Authority will expect applicants for licences to consider whether they may need to
employ security personnel when compiling their operating schedules. This expectation will not just
apply to premises licensed for the supply and consumption of alcohol, but any premises which may
potentially experience disorder.

Premises which are licensed for the supply of late night refreshment, located either in town centre
locations or on primary dispersal routes from such locations, and which cater primarily for the night-
time economy may in particular need to consider whether security personnel will be necessary, both
to safeguard their premises against damage, and to prevent outbreaks of disorder among customers
who may be intoxicated.

Where a premises experiences regular incidents of disorder and does not employ security personnel
to guard against this, the Licensing Authority may consider the imposition of licence conditions
mandating their provision, on receipt of an application to review a licence.

Where a premises has a policy of searching patrons prior to entry, searches should only be carried
out by security personnel of the same gender as the customer who is being searched. This will mean
that such premises will need to employ a minimum of one male and one female door supervisor.

CCTVv

17.6.

17.7.

17.8.

The Licensing Authority will have regard to the Surveillance Camera Code of Practice?, in particular
paragraph 1.15, which highlights that the blanket imposition of licence conditions requiring CCTV
systems to be operated in licensed premises without strong justification would be contrary to the
first principle of the code. The imposition of CCTV conditions will, like all other matters relating to
authorisations under the Act, be considered on a case-by-case basis, taking into account the
circumstances and individual merits of the case in question. The Licensing Authority may still impose
conditions requiring the operation of CCTV, if it is considered necessary to meet an identified
pressing need and for a specified purpose, in addition to being appropriate for the promotion of one
or more of the licensing objectives.

In the absence of a condition requiring it, it will be for the licence-holder to decide whether to
operate a CCTV system in their premises. The Code of Practice, while binding on public authorities, is
voluntary for private operators, although adherence to the principles therein is encouraged.

Where CCTV is in use in licensed premises, the Licensing Authority will expect its use to comply with
the provisions of the Data Protection Act. In particular, this will mean that:

e the licence-holder must register with the Information Commissioner as a Data Controller,

e clear signage is displayed advising of the usage of CCTV,

e the CCTV is under the control of and accessible only by management and supervisory staff, who
are conversant in its usage,

e the licence-holder has a clear policy on the retention of recorded images, and disposes of them

9 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/surveillance-camera-code-of-practice (June 2013)

Page 40

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -31-


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/surveillance-camera-code-of-practice

after a set period (typically around 28 days) unless an incident is reported.

17.9. To ensure the most effective use of CCTV, it is also encouraged that:

e the date and time on the system is correctly set,

e the system is kept operational at all times while the premises are open to the public,

e there is camera coverage of the key parts of the premises, including all entrances/exits, bars,
checkouts and dancefloors,

e where recordings are required by police to assist in an investigation, that these can be accessed

and supplied within a reasonable period — a maximum of 24 hours from receipt of a request is
suggested.

17.10.Hertfordshire Constabulary’s crime prevention officers can offer advice on the installation and setup
of CCTV systems to ensure best evidential quality.

Page 41

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -32-



18. Drugs and new psychoactive substances

18.1. The Licensing Authority expects all licensed premises to adopt suitable measures to detect and
discourage persons from using controlled drugs (which for the purposes of this section means
substances which are proscribed under the Misuse of Drugs Act 1971) while on those premises.
Examples of such measures may include, but are not limited to, the following:

e Ensuring a highly visible staff presence throughout the premises,

e Regular checks by staff of ancillary areas such as lobbies, toilets, cloakrooms and corridors,

e Redesigning toilet facilities to remove horizontal surfaces, and niches and other areas where
illicit items could be concealed,

e Ensuring that all staff, and door staff in particular, are trained to recognise visible signs that a
person is under the influence of an illegal substance, and to refuse such persons entry to the
premises,

e Operating robust ‘search on entry’ policies, with procedures in place to confiscate controlled
drugs found during searches and hand these to police at the earliest opportunity,

e Carrying out testing on surfaces within the premises to detect the presence of traces of
controlled drugs,

e Enforcing a zero tolerance policy to the use or supply of controlled drugs within the premises,
ejecting or refusing entry to persons known to be linked to the use or supply of controlled drugs,
and reporting to the police any person suspected of supplying controlled drugs.

18.2. Where a licence-holder believes that there may be an issue with the illegal use or supply of
controlled drugs within their premises, they are strongly encouraged to contact Hertfordshire
Constabulary for advice and assistance in remedying that issue. This may involve a degree of ‘target
hardening’ — redesigning parts of the premises or operating procedures to more easily detect and
discourage such practices. Where premises are co-operating with the police to deal with such issues,
the Licensing Authority is less likely to take action to remove or restrict the licence, than it would
with premises which do not offer co-operation.

18.3. For the purposes of this part of the policy, the Licensing Authority will regard new psychoactive
substances (widely referred to as ‘legal highs’) in the same way as it does controlled drugs, and will
expect that the measures taken in licensed premises to detect and discourage the use of controlled
drugs will also extend to these substances, which generally mimic the effect of a controlled drug.

18.4. The Licensing Authority expects that licensed premises will not engage in, sanction nor condone the
sale or supply of new psychoactive substances in or from their premises, and may seek to take
enforcement action against premises that are found to be doing so.

18.5. The Licensing Authority recognises that Government has committed to strengthening the legislation
around the supply and use of new psychoactive substances and welcomes such moves.

Page 42

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -33-



19. Public health

19.1. The Director for Public Health in Hertfordshire is a responsible authority under the Act, and may
make representations in respect of applications for premises licences and club premises certificates,
and apply to review licences and certificates.

19.2. At the time of writing, there is no licensing objective correlating purely to public health, and as such
any representations or applications made by the Director for Public Health must be predicated upon
one or more of the current licensing objectives. Representations relating solely to public health
issues are not relevant under the Act.

19.3. The Licensing Authority will work with the Director of Public Health and his staff in order to identify
and utilise relevant public health data within the licensing process. In particular, the authority may
seek to rely upon public health data if it considers the introduction of a special licensing policy, such
as a cumulative impact policy or an early morning alcohol restriction order.

19.4. Public Health may also hold (or have access to) health data concerning individual premises — for
example, ‘Cardiff model’ data of alcohol-related admissions to hospital emergency departments.
Such data may be of particular use to the Licensing Authority when it considers an application for
review of an existing licence or certificate, and the Licensing Authority encourages responsible
authorities who are bringing reviews to liaise with Public Health and examine whether any such data
supports, or conflicts with, the grounds on which a review has been brought.

19.5. The Licensing Authority notes that there are limitations to such data — for example, the Cardiff model
generally only specifies the last premises attended by a casualty, and may not detail any other
premises where they consumed alcohol earlier in the evening, or any alcohol consumed at home (a
practice widely known as ‘pre-loading’). For this reason, the Licensing Authority will carefully
examine any such data presented in support of a representation or review. It is considered unlikely
that action will be taken based solely on Cardiff model data — however, such data may act to
reinforce other evidence presented in respect of a particular case, or may be indicative of an issue in
a particular area requiring further investigation.

19.6. Health data relating to alcohol consumption by children will also be considered carefully by the
authority, as it may indicate a particular geographic area where children are gaining access to
alcohol. Such data may be correlated with complaints and reports of underage sales to inform and
influence future enforcement operations undertaken by the Licensing Authority and responsible
authorities.

Page 43

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -34-



20. Child sexual exploitation

20.1.

20.2.

20.3.

20.4.

20.5.

20.6.

20.7.

High-profile cases around the UK have acted to highlight the potential links between victims of child
sexual exploitation and licensed premises. As licensing authorities have a statutory duty to ensure
the protection of children from harm through the exercise of their licensing functions, it is important
that licence-holders are aware of the potential for premises to be used by persons who are exploiting
children for sexual purposes, and take appropriate measures to detect and discourage this.

Child sexual exploitation generally involves a young person being encouraged, coerced or forced into
participating in a sexual relationship or activity by an adult. It frequently involves the victim being
offered something in exchange for this, such as money, gifts, food, alcohol, cigarettes, drugs,
involvement in adult situations, or sometimes just attention. Victims may have been subject to a
grooming process lasting for weeks, months or years.

There is no single model of sexual exploitation — different cases will all have different circumstances.
Similarly victims will not all come from the same mould — while some victims may have had troubled
backgrounds, others may come from prosperous and loving families.

There are a number of indicators which may indicate possible child sexual exploitation. These
include, but are not limited to:

e relationships which develop between a child and an adult;

e children accompanied by a group of unrelated adults;

e children regularly attending premises and meeting with a number of different adults, particularly
if alcohol is being purchased for the child;

e children outside of licensed premises who develop relationships with adults, particularly if
alcohol is being purchased for the child;

e children leaving the premises with unrelated adults, particularly with a group of adults;

e children looking uncomfortable in the company of or leaving the premises with adults, or groups
of adults.

It must be stated that not every instance of the behaviours listed above will indicate exploitation,
and many interactions between children and adults will be perfectly innocent. However, if staff at
licensed premises have reasonable grounds for suspicion (for example, if the child does not appear to
know the adults they are with, or appears distressed) then they should be urged to report this.

The Licensing Authority expects licence-holders and applicants for new licences to be aware of the
possibility of child sexual exploitation taking place in or around licensed premises, and to adopt
suitable protective measures to assist in the detection and reporting of incidents of this. These may
include:

e inclusion of child sexual exploitation issues within training programs for new and existing staff,

e written management procedures for identifying and reporting suspicious behaviour to police,

e frequent monitoring of all areas of the premises and immediate vicinity, including external areas,
to detect behaviours of the types listed above.

Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children Board, in conjunction with Hertfordshire Constabulary, has
produced information packs'®, containing further relevant guidance to the management and staff of
licensed premises, and of hotels. The Licensing Authority strongly recommends that licensed
premises use these packs to raise awareness of child sexual exploitation among staff, and to
formulate protocols for reporting any suspect behaviour, observed by their staff.

10 http://www.hertsdirect.org/services/healthsoc/childfam/childprotection/hertssafboard/childexplo/

Page 44

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -35-


http://www.hertsdirect.org/services/healthsoc/childfam/childprotection/hertssafboard/childexplo/




21. Film classifications

21.1.

21.2.

21.3.

21.4.

21.5.

21.6.

21.7.

Premises which are licensed for the exhibition of films are required by a mandatory licence condition
to restrict admission to screenings in accordance with any age recommendation made by a film
classification body, or by the Licensing Authority. Where recommendations have been made by both
bodies, and the Licensing Authority has notified licence-holders of this, the Licensing Authority’s
recommendation will take precedence.

For the purposes of sections 20 and 74 of the Act, the Licensing Authority recognises the British
Board of Film Classification (BBFC) as the film classification body, and will specify this body within the
licences and certificates it issues.

The Licensing Authority views as good practice the inclusion within publicity materials of age-related
admission restrictions arising from recommendations made by the BBFC or Licensing Authority. In
any event, licence-holders must take appropriate measures to verify the age of persons being
admitted to films which are subjected to age restrictions.

Details of the applicable recommendation in respect of a particular film should be exhibited prior to
the commencement of that film. In the case of a BBFC recommendation this may be displayed on
screen for at least 5 seconds prior to the feature. Details of a Licensing Authority recommendation
should be displayed at or near the entrance to the screening.

The Licensing Authority anticipates that the BBFC's recommendations will apply to the vast majority
of films shown at licensed premises within the borough. However in a small number of cases, the
Licensing Authority may be called upon to exercise its powers and issue an overriding
recommendation, which would only apply to licensed premises within the borough. Such situations
can be approximately characterised in one of three groups:

e In cases where the Licensing Authority has concerns about a particular film, and has of its own
volition made an alternate recommendation. This may allow admission of persons of a higher or
lower age than the recommendation made by the BBFC, or in extreme circumstances may
prevent the showing of a particular film. This power will be rarely, if ever, utilised.

e In cases where a film has not been classified by the BBFC. This is likely to be the case with small,
local, independent films, or foreign films, where a wider UK release is not intended.

e In cases where the Licensing Authority is approached by a third party, asking the authority to
override a recommendation made by the BBFC.

The third of these groups may include films intended to be shown at ‘parent and baby’ screenings,
which have increased in popularity in recent years. The Act and Guidance are silent on the admission
of babies to a film which is subject to an age-related recommendation — therefore on a strict
interpretation of the Act, babies must be excluded from such screenings. The Licensing Authority is
aware that some cinemas across the country have agreed schemes whereby the applicable Licensing
Authority makes an alternate recommendation in respect of a specified film, expressly permitting the
admission of babies and very young children to special screenings of that film with only parents of
such children in attendance.

It is recommended that any premises considering the provision of such screenings contacts the
Licensing Authority to discuss the proposals firstly. The authority will typically expect special
provisions to be made for such screenings, including higher light levels and reduced sound levels, in
order that parents can better ensure the safety of their children.

Page 46

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -37-



Issue of recommendations by the authority

21.8.

21.9.

When exercising powers under section 20 to issue an admission recommendation for a previously-
unclassified film, it is proposed that the authority will adhere to the BBFC’s Classification Guidelines
(www.bbfc.co.uk/whatclassification/guidelines), and where possible will issue a recommendation
which is in accordance with one of the standard classification bands. This approach is preferred as
audiences will be familiar with this particular classification scheme and the meaning of the
‘certificates’.

In such circumstances, the authority will require the organiser of the exhibition to provide a copy of
the film for classification purposes, or to arrange a viewing for representatives of the Licensing
Authority.

Alternate recommendations for parent and baby screenings

21.10.Where the Licensing Authority receives a request to override an existing recommendation made by

the BBFC, or has concerns of its own in respect of a particular film, in the first instance the authority
shall have regard to the BBFC’s original classification decision, and the BBFC Insight record which
describes the content of the film that led to the classification decision. If satisfied that the content
will not present any issues if viewed by children under 24 months of age, then the authority may
agree to issue an alternate recommendation, consistent with the BBFC’s original classification but
including a specific exemption for accompanied children below 24 months of age, at screenings
advertised and restricted to ‘parent and baby’ only. Issues will be assessed on a film-by-film basis,
but it is anticipated that scenes of strong violence and gore, sex and strong threat will lead to greater
concern around viewing by children of that age than strong language, mild nudity and discriminatory
content will.

21.11.Where concerns exist based on the BBFC Insight record that a film may not be suitable for viewing by

young children below 24 months of age, the authority may request that the cinema facilitates a
viewing of the film in question to make a full assessment of this. No alternate recommendation
would be issued unless the authority is satisfied that allowing young children below 24 months of age
to be admitted will not lead to the child protection licensing objective being undermined.

Page 4/

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -38-


http://www.bbfc.co.uk/whatclassification/guidelines

22. Outdoor events

22.1.

22.2.

22.3.

22.4.

22.5.

22.6.

22.7.

The Licensing Authority recognises the contribution that well-run outdoor events bring to local
communities, and is pleased to support events which are run in a manner that will promote the
licensing objectives.

The organisation of outdoor events of any size is a significant undertaking, with a multitude of issues
which must be taken into account. Licensing is only one aspect of the regulation and control of such
events.

Generally we would expect the organisers of all outdoor events to follow the advice contained in the
“Purple Guide”'! when planning their event. This document contains guidance written by and for the
events industry in respect of safety and welfare aspects of event management, and replaced earlier
guidance issued by the Health and Safety Executive.

For larger events, taking place under the authority of premises licences, it is recommended that
organisers consider engaging professional advice and assistance, particularly with regards to issues
which may affect public safety.

The authority will also expect the organisers of any large events (taking place under the authority of
a premises licence) or events which include special risk factors to consult the Dacorum Safety
Advisory Group while planning their event, and to implement any reasonable recommendations
made by the group. The safety advisory group is a multi-agency body, which includes representatives
of the Licensing Authority, responsible authorities and other statutory bodies who have involvement
in the organisation and safe running of events.

Prior to applying for a licence, event organisers will need to secure permission from the appropriate
landowner for the site on which they intend to hold their event. In the case of public land for which
the Council is responsible for managing, including parks and common land, approaches should be
made to the Outdoor Recreation Officer, within the Council’s Estate department.

One of the major concerns arising from outdoor events is disturbance to local residents from noise
associated with music entertainment at the event, or other noisy equipment such as generators,
public announcement systems, fireworks, and so on. The Licensing Authority will expect to receive a
comprehensive operating schedule from licence applicants, containing appropriate proposals to
control such issues and promote the public nuisance licensing objective.

23. Use of multiple Temporary Event Notices for single events

23.1.

23.2.

23.3.

It has become increasingly common for larger scale events where licensable activities are taking
place to be covered by multiple Temporary Event Notices.

Whilst, this will often be perfectly legal, it is important that sufficient formal planning is carried out
for such events in order to reassure the Police and Environmental Health that the event can take
place in such a way that the licensing objectives are promoted.

It is also important that organisers take suitable steps to ensure that they can be confident that they
will not be inadvertently breaching licensing laws when running events in this way.

11 www.thepurpleguide.co.uk

Page 48

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -39-


http://www.thepurpleguide.co.uk/

23.4. Organisers should consider using the Dacorum Safety Advisory Group, and whether Pre-Application
advice is worthwhile.

Page 49

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -40-



24. Other relevant considerations

24.1.

24.2.

24.3.

24.4.

24.5.

Licensed premises are subject to many statutory requirements including fire safety, trading
standards, food hygiene, health and safety, and planning. These different regulatory systems will be
properly separated as described in the Guidance.

In addition, section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires the Council when exercising its
functions to do all it reasonably can to prevent crime and disorder.

By consulting widely prior to this policy statement being published the Licensing Authority will
endeavour to secure proper integration with local crime prevention, planning, transport, tourism and
cultural strategies.

Applicants are encouraged to make themselves aware of any relevant planning and transportation
policies, tourism and cultural strategies or local crime prevention strategies and to have taken these
into account, where appropriate, when formulating their operating schedule.

There are a number of wider issues which may need to be given due consideration when dealing with
applications. The Licensing Authority may, when appropriate, receive reports on:

e the needs of the local tourist economy;

e the cultural strategy for the area;

e the employment situation in the area and the need for new investment and employment
opportunities where appropriate;

e planning considerations which might affect licensed premises

Live music, dance and theatre

24.6.

24.7.

24.8.

24.9.

The Licensing Authority will monitor the impact of its licensing decisions on the provision of
regulated entertainment within the Borough, and particularly live music, dancing and plays.

Many events which consist solely of these activities will now fall outside of licensing requirements,
following recent deregulation.

The Licensing Authority is aware of the Covenant on Economic, Social and Cultural Rights and the
requirements of Article 15 which require that progressive measures be taken to ensure that
everyone can participate in the cultural life of the community and enjoy the arts. Care will be taken
to ensure that only appropriate, proportionate and reasonable licensing conditions impose any
restriction on these events.

Account will be taken of the need to encourage and promote live music, dancing and theatre for the
wider cultural benefit of the community as a whole. If representations are made concerning the
potential for limited disturbance in a particular neighbourhood, the Licensing Authority’s
consideration will be balanced against the wider benefits to the community of these activities.

24.10.When attaching conditions the Licensing Authority will generally seek to avoid measures which might

deter live music, dancing or theatre by imposing indirect costs of a substantial nature. However the
Licensing Authority notes that on occasion it may have no choice but to impose such requirements in
order to safeguard the licensing objectives — for example, requiring the installation of safety
equipment to ensure the safety of persons attending an entertainment performance.

Page 50

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -41-



Transport

24.11.Where any protocols agreed with the police identify a particular need to disperse people from town
centres swiftly and safely to avoid concentrations which could lead to disorder and disturbance, the
Licensing Authority will inform and work with local transport providers to reduce the potential for
problems to occur.

24.12.At present no issues have been identified with regard to transport and the dispersal of people from
the town centres. The Licensing Authority will continue to liaise with the local police and licence-
holders to review the transport situation and to report its findings.

Page 51

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -42-



Part C:
Other regulatory controls

Page 52

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -43-



25. Special licensing policies

25.1. There are several types of special licensing policy which a Licensing Authority is entitled to adopt, to
help it regulate the provision of licensable activities within its area.

Cumulative impact policies

25.2. The authority may adopt a special policy, known as a cumulative impact policy, if it is satisfied that
there is an adverse impact on one or more of the licensing objectives as a result of a significant
number of licensed premises being concentrated in a defined locality. The effect of this impact will
be, for example, a spike in incidents of crime, disorder or nuisance over and above what can be
attributed to the operation of the individual premises.

25.3. By adopting a cumulative impact policy, a Licensing Authority creates a rebuttable presumption that
future licence applications for premises within the area defined in the policy will be refused, unless
applicants can demonstrate conclusively that their proposals will not adversely affect the issues
being experienced. Policies may relate to any licensable activity, although the supply of alcohol is the
most common subject of policies adopted nationwide.

25.4. Where a cumulative impact policy is adopted, the Licensing Authority’s discretion to consider the
rejection of an application is only engaged upon the receipt of relevant representations. In the
absence of such representations, the duty to grant a licence in the terms applied for remains
unchanged.

25.5. In determining whether to adopt a special policy for a particular area the Licensing Authority will:

e identify evidence of concerns about relating to a licensing objective;

e consider whether the evidence demonstrates that a cumulative impact caused by the customers
of multiple licensed premises is adversely affecting a licensing objective;

e identify the precise area(s) where issues are occurring;

e undertake a public consultation on the proposed policy; and

e include and publish details of any special policy within this policy statement.

25.6. Having considered the available evidence, the Licensing Authority considers that there is no
particular part of Dacorum experiencing cumulative impact on the promotion of any of the licensing
objectives, at the present time, which would warrant the introduction of a cumulative impact policy.

25.7. The Licensing Authority will continue to monitor the entirety of the Borough for issues relating to
cumulative impact, in conjunction with the responsible authorities and other members of the
Dacorum Community Safety Partnership. Should evidence of a cumulative impact issue emerge
during the validity of this policy, the Licensing Authority may look to adopt a cumulative impact
policy by way of an interim revision.

Early morning alcohol restriction orders (EMARQ’s)

25.8. To promote the licensing objectives, a Licensing Authority may utilise powers under the Act to pass
an early morning alcohol restriction order. Such an order would prohibit the sale of alcohol from any
premises within an area defined in the order between specified times (which may extend from
midnight until 6 a.m.) on specified days.

25.9. ltis envisaged that this power will only be used in response to severe and recurring issues arising

Page 53

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -44-




from the supply of alcohol in the night-time economy, such as high levels of alcohol-related crime
and disorder in specific areas at specific times, which cannot be attributed to an individual premises.
The Licensing Authority views this as a ‘last resort’ option, for use after other tools have been
unsuccessful in remedying the issue.

25.10.At the present time, Dacorum has not utilised the provisions of the Act to pass an early morning
alcohol restriction order, and has no current plans to do so. Should this position change, full details
will be published on our website and notified to all licensed premises that would be affected.

Late night levy

25.11.Part 2 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 introduced a new power for licensing
authorities to establish a ‘late night levy’. Licensed premises within the area of a Licensing Authority
which has adopted such a requirement will be required to pay an additional annual fee if they are
licensed to supply alcohol within a late night period set by the authority (generally between midnight
and 6 a.m., although shorter periods are permissible).

25.12.Where a levy requirement has been adopted, the Licensing Authority will be responsible for the
collection of the appropriate amounts from licence-holders. After deduction of administration costs,
not less than 70% of the net proceeds of the levy must be paid by the Licensing Authority to the local
police force, which may be used (but is not required to be) to offset the costs incurred in policing the
night time economy arising from the alcohol supplies permitted from affected licensed premises. The
remaining amount may only be applied on purposes prescribed in Regulations, namely arrangements
connected with the late night supply of alcohol for one or more of the following functions:

e The reduction or prevention of crime and disorder

e The promotion of public safety

e The reduction or prevention of public nuisance

e The cleaning of any relevant highway or relevant land in its area.

25.13.At the time of writing, Dacorum has not adopted the provisions of the 2011 Act relating to a late
night levy, nor is it currently intended to do so.

Page 54

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -45-



26. Public space protection orders

26.1.

26.2.

26.3.

26.4.

26.5.

Under the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, local authorities may make orders to
protect public spaces from specified forms of nuisance, including anti-social behaviour arising from
the consumption of alcohol, which has or is likely to have a detrimental effect on the quality of life of
those in the vicinity. This power replaced that under previous legislation for the creation of
designated public place orders (DPPQ’s).

Where a public space protection order has effect and includes provisions relating to the consumption
of alcohol, any person who is consuming alcohol in a street or public place which is within the area
covered by that order must cease drinking if requested to do so by a police officer or an authorised
person, and surrender any alcohol for disposal. It is a criminal offence to fail to comply with the
instructions of a police officer or authorised person in this respect, and may result in a fixed penalty
notice being issued, or arrest and prosecution.

A public space protection order will not apply to any premises within a specified area at which
alcohol may be supplied and consumed under the authority of a premises licence or a club premises
certificate, or at which a temporary event notice authorising the supply of alcohol is currently active
or was active no more than 30 minutes previously.

Details of any such orders adopted by the Council will be published on our website.*?
Dacorum has previously adopted a number of DPPQO’s in response to issues around street drinking,

which will continue to have effect for a limited time ahead of a review process. Following a review,
the authority may replace these orders with a new public space protection order, or extinguish them.

27. Fire safety

27.1.

27.2.

27.3.

27.4.

The primary legislation in respect of fire safety in commercial premises is the Regulatory Reform (Fire
Safety) Order 2005, which is enforced by fire and rescue authorities.

The Licensing Authority will seek to avoid duplication with this regulatory regime when exercising its
licensing powers. In particular, we will not seek to attach conditions to licences and certificates which
duplicate requirements under the Order, nor will we impose conditions which limit capacity within a
licensed premises on fire safety grounds, although we may continue to set capacity limits if this is
considered appropriate on another public safety ground.

The Licensing Authority expects all premises licence and club premises certificate holders to adhere
fully to the requirements of the Order, in particular with regard to ensuring that a suitable fire risk
assessment has been undertaken and any applicable measures implemented. We will work closely
with Hertfordshire Fire & Rescue Service in this respect, as failure to fully adhere to fire safety
legislation may be indicative of a more systemic management failure to promote the licensing
objectives.

The fire and rescue authority is a responsible authority and can make representations on licensing
applications. It can, however, only make representations which relate to one or more of the licensing
objectives, and not solely based on a failure to adhere to fire safety legislative requirements.

12 For alcohol-related orders, see www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/environment-street-care/licensing/alcohol-
entertainment-licensing/statement-of-licensing-policy/special-licensing-policies

Page 55

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -46-


http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/environment-street-care/licensing/alcohol-entertainment-licensing/statement-of-licensing-policy/special-licensing-policies
http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/environment-street-care/licensing/alcohol-entertainment-licensing/statement-of-licensing-policy/special-licensing-policies

28. Planning and building control

28.1.

28.2.

28.3.

28.4.

28.5.

28.6.

28.7.

28.8.

The planning and licensing regimes involve the consideration of different (albeit partly-related)
matters. For instance licensing considers public nuisance whereas planning considers amenity.
Licensing applications should not be a re-run of the planning application and should not cut across
decisions taken by the Council’s Development Control Committee — the Licensing Authority is not
bound by the decisions made by the planning authority, and vice versa.

The granting by the Licensing Authority of a licence or a variation thereof, which involves a material
alteration to a building, would not relieve the applicant of the need to apply for planning permission
or building control approval where appropriate. In particular, where licensable activities are
proposed to be carried on at listed buildings, no works should be undertaken without first applying
to the Local Planning Authority for listed building consent, where required.

There are also circumstances when, as a condition of planning permission, a terminal hour has been
set for the use of the premises for commercial purposes. Where these hours are different from the
permitted licensing hours, the applicant must observe the earlier closing time. Premises operating in
breach of either their planning or licensing permissions would be liable to enforcement action under
the applicable legislation.

The planning, building control and licensing regimes of the Licensing Authority will be properly
separated to avoid duplication. Normally applications for premises licences for permanent
commercial premises will be from businesses with planning consent for the premises concerned.
However, applications for licences may be made before any relevant planning permission has been
sought or granted by the planning authority, or simultaneously.

The planning authority is a responsible authority and can make representations on licensing
applications. It can, however, only make representations which relate to one or more of the licensing
objectives, and are not solely based on a failure to adhere to planning or building control legislative
requirements

The Council as a planning authority has adopted planning policies which relate to planning concerns,
including the development and use of buildings and land. They contain criteria related to such
matters as the size of premises and the use of premises, rather than to individual licensable activities.

Planning remains the regime that is concerned with the development of premises and their overall
use. Licensing is directed at individual licensable activities and their management. The granting of
planning permission for a premises or a finding that premises enjoy lawful use, will not prevent the
Licensing Authority from considering in detail the licensable activities, their management and
conditions appropriate to them.

The Council regards licensing as a key means of controlling nuisance and anti-social behaviour and
part of the holistic approach to the management of the evening and night time economy.

Page 56

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -47-



29. Promotion of equality

29.1. The Licensing Authority recognises that the Equality Act 2010 places a legal obligation on public
authorities to have due regard to the need to eliminate unlawful discrimination, and to promote
equality of opportunity and good relations between persons of different characteristics. The 2010
Act provides for a number of protected characteristics, as follows:

e age

e disability

e gender reassignment

e marriage and civil partnership
e pregnancy and maternity

® race
e religion or belief
o sex

e sexual orientation

29.2. The Licensing Authority expects that licensed premises will not discriminate against any person based
solely on any of these characteristics — for example, refusing a person entry to a licensed premises on
the basis of their race, gender or age.

29.3. The sole exception to this will be where such action is necessary to comply with legal requirements
or licence conditions, particularly in respect of ensuring an individual’s age in situations where
licence-holders must restrict access to age-restricted goods or services to any person who is below
the legal age for that good or service — for example, the sale of alcohol to under-18’s, or admission of
under 15’s or under 18'’s to a film with a ‘15’ or ‘18’ certificate.

29.4. The Licensing Authority will also expect member’s clubs to ensure that their membership rules do
result in discrimination against a person on the basis of a protected characteristic — for example,
maintaining different membership classes for persons of different genders.

Page 57

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -48-



30. Copyright restrictions

30.1.

30.2.

30.3.

30.4.

30.5.

30.6.

Premises which play music or exhibit films under the authority of a licence issued by Dacorum will
need to ensure that they are not infringing upon the copyright of the creators, publishers or
distributors of the applicable content, and hold appropriate permission authorising the commercial
or public use of the songs or films in question. Premises licences, club premises certificates, and
temporary event notices only authorise the physical act of playing music or exhibiting films in the
presence of an audience, and do not convey any entitlement under copyright law.

It is beyond the remit of this document to provide a full breakdown of copyright laws. However, in
essence, the vast majority of films and music purchased from consumer outlets are typically licensed
for non-commercial private (or home) use only. Use for any other purpose, such as exhibition to an
audience or use in conjunction with a commercial enterprise will not typically be compatible with the
terms of the licence granted upon purchasing the music or video recording.

There may be several persons or bodies with legitimate copyright claims to every film or piece of
music — for example, claims in respect of a recording of a song may be enforced by the singer, the
songwriter, the producer and the publisher, as a minimum. Securing individual permissions from
every such person would be a complex and costly undertaking. However, many copyright holders are
represented by a smaller number of copyright collection societies or distributors, who often issue
annual licences covering every song or film in their catalogues. These include:

e For music:
o Performing Rights Society (PRS) — www.prsformusic.com
o Phonographic Performance Ltd (PPL) — www.ppluk.com

e For films:
o British Film Institute (BFI) — www.bfi.org.uk/distribution/
o Filmbank Distributors — www.filmbank.co.uk
o Motion Picture Licensing Company — www.themplc.co.uk

The Licensing Authority expects premises licence and club premises certificate holders to ensure that
they are correctly authorised by all relevant copyright holders or collection societies for every song
played or film exhibited at licensed premises. The authority may be legally required to provide details
of licences and licence-holders to rights-holders for use in legal proceedings in respect of copyright
infringement.

Copyright restrictions also affect another activity frequently provided at licensed premises — the
showing of televised sporting events. Although this activity will not typically require authorisation
from the Licensing Authority (unless the original broadcast is recorded for later exhibition), licence-
holders showing such broadcasts should ensure that they have a valid TV licence for their premises. If
the sporting event is shown on a channel which is not free-to-air, or is broadcast on a pay-per-view
basis, a valid commercial premises contract should be obtained from the appropriate broadcaster.

The primary means of enforcing copyright claims is by way of proceedings brought under the
Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988 by rights-holders. As such, the Licensing Authority will not
generally consider it appropriate to exercise its licensing powers in respect of claims of copyright
infringement at licensed premises. However, convictions for certain offences under the 1988 Act are
specified as relevant offences in respect of personal licences, and may be considered as grounds for
the refusal of an application for a personal licence or forfeiture of an existing personal licence (to be
ordered by the court upon conviction for a relevant offence).

Page 58

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 -49-


http://www.prsformusic.com/
http://www.ppluk.com/
http://www.bfi.org.uk/distribution/
http://www.filmbank.co.uk/
http://www.themplc.co.uk/

Annexes

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 Page 59 -50-



Annex A — Delegation of functions

Full details of the scheme of delegation adopted by Dacorum can be viewed in the Council’s Constitution,
which is available on our website. The table below summarises the main delegations, and shows which
functions will be exercised at which level.

Matter to be determined

Delegation level

Licensing of Alcohol & Gambling
Sub-Committee

Officers

Premises licences

Determination of an application for
a provisional statement

Where relevant representations have been
received and not withdrawn

Where relevant representations were not
received or have all been withdrawn

Determination of an application for
a premises licence

Where relevant representations have been
received and not withdrawn

Where relevant representations were not
received or have all been withdrawn

Determination of an application for
variation of a premises licence

Where relevant representations have been
received and not withdrawn

Where relevant representations were not
received or have all been withdrawn

Determination of an application for
minor variation of a premises
licence

v

Determination of an application to
designate a premises supervisor

Where a police objection notice has been
received and not withdrawn

Where a police objection notice was not
received or has been withdrawn

Determination of an application for
transfer of a premises licence

Where a police objection notice has been
received and not withdrawn

Where a police objection notice was not
received or has been withdrawn

Consideration of an interim
authority notice

Where a police objection notice has been
received and not withdrawn

Where a police objection notice was not
received or has been withdrawn

Determination of an application for
review of a premises licence
(including summary reviews and
reviews following closure orders)

v

Consideration of interim steps on
summary review application

v

Suspension of premises licence for
non-payment of annual fee

v

Club premises certificates

Determination of an application for
a club premises certificate

Where relevant representations have been
received and not withdrawn

Where relevant representations were not
received or have all been withdrawn

Determination of an application for
variation of a club premises cert.

Where relevant representations have been
received and not withdrawn

Where relevant representations were not
received or have all been withdrawn

Determination of an application for
minor variation of a club premises
certificate

v

Determination of an application for
review of a club premises certificate

Withdrawal of club premises
certificate from ex-qualifying club

Suspension of club premises
certificate for non-payment of
annual fee

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Page 60

-51-



Matter to be determined

Delegation level

Licensing of Alcohol & Gambling
Sub-Committee

Officers

Temporary event notices

Consideration of a standard
temporary event notice

Where an objection notice has been
received and not withdrawn

(includes imposition of conditions if no
counter-notice is issued)

Where an objection notice was not
received or has been withdrawn

Consideration of a late
temporary event notice

v

(includes issue of counter-notice where an
objection notice was received)

Issue of counter-notice where
statutory limits exceeded

v

Personal licences

Determination of an application for
a personal licence

Where a police objection notice has been
received and not withdrawn

Where a police objection notice was not
received or has been withdrawn

Consideration of convictions coming
to light after grant of personal
licence

Where a police objection notice has been
received and not withdrawn

Where a police objection notice was not
received or has been withdrawn

General

Decisions to prosecute or issue
cautions for offences under the Act

Initiation of reviews and making of
representations on behalf of the
Licensing Authority

Determination of relevancy of
representations

Issue of premises closure orders
(Anti-social Behaviour, Crime and
Policing Ac t 2014)

AN N AN A

Adoption of the statement of licensing policy, early morning alcohol restriction orders and a late night levy
requirement are functions of the Full Council.

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026

Page 61

-52-




Annex B — Useful resources

Age verification
No ID No Sale campaign
e www.noidnosale.org

Alcohol awareness
Drinkaware
e www.drinkaware.co.uk

Alcohol promotions
Code of Practice of the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks (Portman Group)
e www.portmangroup.org.uk/codes/alcohol-marketing/code-of-practice

Child sexual exploitation
Operation HALO minisite (Hertfordshire Constabulary)
e www.herts.police.uk/advice/halo.aspx

Say Something If You See Something resources (Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children’s Board)
e www.hertsdirect.org/services/healthsoc/childfam/childprotection/hertssafboard/childexplo/

Counter-terrorism
Protecting Crowded Places from Terrorism (National Counter-Terrorism Security Office)
e www.gov.uk/government/collections/crowded-places

Crowd safety
Managing Crowds Safely: a guide for organisers at events and venues (HSE Publications)
e www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/priced/hsg154.pdf

Film classification
Classification guidelines (British Board of Film Classification)
e www.bbfc.co.uk/what-classification

Fire safety
Fire safety advice documents (Department for Communities and Local Government)
e www.gov.uk/workplace-fire-safety-your-responsibilities/fire-safety-advice-documents

Hertfordshire Fire & Rescue Service — large outdoor event advice/requirements
e Available via www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/environment-street-care/licensing/event-safety

Noise control
Guidelines on Community Noise (World Health Organisation)
e www.who.int/docstore/peh/noise/guidelines2.html

Effective Management of Noise from Licensed Premises (British Beer and Pub Association)
e www.beerandpub.com/industry-briefings/bbpa-guidance-on-licensed-property-noise-control

Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts (Noise Council)
e www.cieh.org/policy/default.aspx?id=13870

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 Page 62 -53-


http://www.noidnosale.org/
http://www.drinkaware.co.uk/
http://www.portmangroup.org.uk/codes/alcohol-marketing/code-of-practice
http://www.herts.police.uk/advice/halo.aspx
http://www.hertsdirect.org/services/healthsoc/childfam/childprotection/hertssafboard/childexplo/
http://www.gov.uk/government/collections/crowded-places
http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/priced/hsg154.pdf
http://www.bbfc.co.uk/what-classification
http://www.gov.uk/workplace-fire-safety-your-responsibilities/fire-safety-advice-documents
http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/environment-street-care/licensing/event-safety
http://www.who.int/docstore/peh/noise/guidelines2.html
http://www.beerandpub.com/industry-briefings/bbpa-guidance-on-licensed-property-noise-control
http://www.cieh.org/policy/default.aspx?id=13870

Outdoor events
The Purple Guide to Health, Safety and Welfare at music and other events
e www.thepurpleguide.co.uk (subscription required)

The ‘Can Do’ guide to Organising a Voluntary Event (Cabinet Office)
e www.gov.uk/government/publications/can-do-guide-for-organisers-of-voluntary-events

Event safety guidance (Dacorum Safety Advisory Group)
e www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/environment-street-care/licensing/event-safety

Security and CCTV
Security Industry Authority website
e www.sia.homeoffice.gov.uk

Surveillance Camera Code of Practice (Surveillance Camera Commissioner)
e www.gov.uk/government/publications/surveillance-camera-code-of-practice

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 Page 63

-54-


http://www.thepurpleguide.co.uk/
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/can-do-guide-for-organisers-of-voluntary-events
http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/environment-street-care/licensing/event-safety
http://www.sia.homeoffice.gov.uk/
http://www.gov.uk/government/publications/surveillance-camera-code-of-practice

Annex C — Contact details

For information on this statement of licensing policy, or for informal advice on making an application or
whether a particular activity is likely to require authorisation, please contact:

Licensing

Dacorum Borough Council
Civic Centre

Marlowes

Hemel Hempstead

HP1 1HH

Phone: 01442 228000
Email: licensing@dacorum.gov.uk
Web:  www.dacorum.gov.uk/licensing

Many applications for licences can be made online — to do so, look for the ‘Do it online’ links on our
website, at www.dacorum.gov.uk/licensing

Please note that, due to the complexity of the legislation that governs these activities, we can only give
basic advice about which activities do and do not require authorisation, and about application processes.

If you are unsure as to the legality of a particular activity, or require more detailed information or advice

than we are able to offer, we recommend that you consult an independent specialist advisor or a legal
representative.

Responsible authority contact details

Hertfordshire Constabulary (Dacorum Licensing)
Phone: 01442 271601 Email: dacorumlicensing@herts.pnn.police.uk

Hertfordshire Fire and Rescue Service (Fire Protection)
Phone: 01707 292310 Email: administration.cfs@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Hertfordshire Public Health
Phone: 0300 123 4040 Email: publichealth@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Hertfordshire Trading Standards
Phone: 01707 292429 Email: tradingstandards@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Dacorum Regulatory Services
Phone: 01442 228455 Email: environmentalhealth@dacorum.gov.uk

Dacorum Planning
Phone: 01442 228000 Email: planning@dacorum.gov.uk

Hertfordshire Safeguarding Children Board
Phone: 01992 588757 Email: admin.hscb@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Full contact details for the above authorities including postal addresses, and additional authorities in
respect of licensable activities on vessels, can be viewed on our website.

Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 Page 64 -55-


mailto:licensing@dacorum.gov.uk
http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/licensing
http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/licensing
mailto:dacorumlicensing@herts.pnn.police.uk
mailto:administration.cfs@hertfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:publichealth@hertfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:tradingstandards@hertfordshire.gov.uk
mailto:environmentalhealth@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:planning@dacorum.gov.uk
mailto:admin.hscb@hertfordshire.gov.uk

To make an application or for further guidance, please visit our website:
www.dacorum.gov.uk/licensing

For informal advice or queries, please email:
licensing@dacorum.gov.uk

Dacorum Borough Council
Statement of Licensing Policy (Licensing Act 2005} January 2016


http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/licensing
mailto:licensing@dacorum.gov.uk

99 abed

Dacorum BC Community Impact Assessment (CIA) Template

Policy / service / decision o Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 [Licensing Act 2003: alcohol,
entertainment and late night refreshment licences]

Description of what is being impact assessed

What are the aims of the service, proposal, project? What outcomes do you want to achieve? What are the reasons for the proposal or change? Do you
need to reference/consider any related projects?

Stakeholders; Who will be affected? Which protected characteristics is it most relevant to? Consider the public, service users, partners, staff, Members, etc

It is advisable to involve at least one colleague in the preparation of the assessment, dependent on likely level of impact

The policy is a legal requirement and provides guidance in relation to how the Council will go about its duties as the Licensing Authority for
such matters.

Evidence

What data/information have you used to assess how this policy/service/decision might impact on protected groups?
(include relevant national/local data, research, monitoring information, service user feedback, complaints, audits, consultations, CIAs from other projects
or other local authorities, etc.). You should include such information in a proportionate manner to reflect the level of impact of the policy/service/decision.

The policy has to be consulted on and will go to various responsible authorities, as well as to any key stakeholders who can be identified,
and being published on the Council’s website for any responses from the public generally. The policy is strategic in nature and is largely
guided by national legislation as to what it must contain.

Who have you consulted with to assess possible impact on protected groups? If you have not consulted other people, please
explain why? You should include such information in a proportionate manner to reflect the level of impact of the policy/service/decision.

September 2019 V2




]9 abed

Consultation is a legal requirement as part of the review of this policy. A large number of stakeholders will be directly consulted
with, as well as the draft being made available on our website.

Analysis of impact on protected groups (and others)

The Public Sector Equality Duty requires Dacorum BC to eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster
good relations with protected groups. Consider how this policy/service/decision will achieve these aims. Using the table below,
detail what considerations and potential impacts against each of these using the evidence that you have collated and your own
understanding. Based on this information, make an assessment of the likely outcome, before you have implemented any
mitigation.

e The PCs of Marriage and Civil Partnership and Pregnancy and Maternity should be added if their inclusion is relevant for impact assessment.

e Use “insert below” menu layout option to insert extra rows where relevant (e.g. extra rows for different impairments within Disability).

Summary of impact

users and the wider community/ public. Who uses / will use the service? Who doesn’t/ can’t outcome outcome

and why? Feedback/complaints?

No concerns

Disability (physical,
intellectual, mental) | No concerns

Refer to CIA Guidance Notes
and Mental lliness &
Learning Disability Guide

September 2019 V2

Negative Positive
Protected group What do you know? What do people tell you? Summary of data and feedback about service impaCt / impaCt /



g9 abed

Gender reassignment

No concerns

Race and ethnicity

No concerns

Religion or belief

No concerns

Sex

No concerns

Sexual orientation

No concerns

Not protected
characteristics but
consider other
factors, e.g. carers,
veterans, homeless,
low income,
loneliness, rurality
etc.

No concerns

September 2019 V2




69 abed

Negative impacts / outcomes action plan

these. Please detail below the actions that you intend to take.

Where you have ascertained that there will potentially be negative impacts / outcomes, you are required to mitigate the impact of

Action taken/to be taken

Person .
Date ibl Action complete
(copy & paste the negative impact / outcome then detail action) S
Consultation to take place 30/09/2020 | Nathan March O
Review of policy if any negative impacts/outcomes are identified through 20/10/2020 | Nathan
consultation March/Licensing []
Committee
Select date ]
Select date O
Select date []
Select date ]
Select date ]
Select date []

September 2019 V2




0/ abed

If negative impacts / outcomes remain, please provide an explanation below.

N/A

Completed by (all involved in CIA)

Nathan March, Licensing Team leader

Date

9th July 2020

Signed off by (AD from different Directorate
if being presented to CMT / Cabinet)

Date

Entered onto CIA database - date

To be reviewed by (officer name)

Nathan March, Licensing Team Leader

Review date

September 2020 (following consultation)

September 2019 V2




BOROUGH
COUNCIL

Agenda Iltem 6

AGENDA ITEM: 6

Licensing and Health & Safety

Report for: Enforcement Committee

Date of meeting: | 21 July 2020

PART: |

If Part Il, reason:

Title of report:

Taxi and Private Hire Advice (Coronavirus)

Contact:

Nathan March - Licensing Team Leader

Purpose of report:

To introduce draft guidance for the taxi and private hire trade in
regards to returning to work following the easing of restriction
related to the spread of coronavirus

1. To agree the guidance with or without modification so that it
can be confirmed to the drivers, vehicle owners and
operators as the Council’s advice.

Recommendations
2. To delegate to officers changes to the guidance if this
needs to be amended/updated
e A clean, safe and enjoyable environment
Corporate o Ensuring efficient, effective and modern service delivery
objectives: e Building strong and vibrant communities
e Ensuring economic growth and prosperity
Financial
None
Implications:
Value for Money / Community Impact / Risk / Health And Safety
Implications
None identified
Consultees: This guidance is being produced as a result of requests from the

trade for such. Information has been gathered from other Licensing

Page 71



authorities and Government advice in order to understand suitable
guidance to give to our trade.

Background papers:

Glossary of

acronyms and any
other abbreviations
used in this report:

1. BACKGROUND

1.1.

1.2.

1.3.

2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

24.

3.1.

As the Government continues to relax the restrictions that it put in place to protect
the country from the spread of Corvid-19, the taxi trade is gradually returning to
more normal working patterns.

The Council has had a lot of enquiries from the trade, in regards to various potential
approaches they may be able to take to minimise the risk of becoming infected, or
passing on the virus to customers whilst working.

The Guidance attached has been produced following research into what other
authorities are doing, reviewing Government guidance, training being received, and
listening to the trade’s concerns

PROPOSAL

The guidance seeks to advise the trade as to what they should consider when
returning to work, and covers the key issues that are being raised by the trade
regularly.

The guidance will assist the trade in being confident about what they can do with the
support of the Council, such as the addition of screens, and refusal of passengers
who do not wear masks (unless exempt), and also ensures they understand their
responsibilities such as maintaining a regular cleaning regime to help prevent the
potential spread of the coronavirus.

The guidance on things like face coverings is constantly developing so this guidance
is accurate at the time of this report, but is likely to need to be amended more
frequently than other guidance provided to the trade.

The trade are not being required to adopt any new approaches to their work; the
information in the document is guidance for those who wish to do so, and seeks to
ensure that if they do wish to install partitions for example, they do so using a
standard that will not affect other safety measures already in place to protect drivers
and passengers in the event of an accident or similar event.

Recommendations

As detailed at the start of the Report.

Page 72




Taxi and Private Hire Advice
Returning to work safely (coronavirus)

BOROUGH
COUNCIL

This Advice is a guide to how Dacorum Borough Council will be approaching some of the key aspects of
consideration for the Taxi and Private Hire Trade returning to work as the restrictions relating to Covid-19 are
gradually lifted

Licensees should also familiarise themselves with updated Government guidance for those operating transport
services and specific guidance for taxi and private hire services.

Key issues for consideration:

Use of face masks/coverings
Social distancing

Partitions in licensed vehicles
Cleaning vehicles

Face Masks/Coverings

The latest scientific advice suggests that, although face coverings are unlikely to prevent an individual from
getting the coronavirus, they can help prevent someone who is infected from infecting others and therefore
help control the virus. Face coverings are particularly important where two metre social distancing is hard to
maintain, for example when travelling on public transport. While the Government advice doesn’t explicitly
cover the use of taxi and private hire services, this guidance is intended to mirror the arrangements put in
place on public transport.

Face coverings for drivers:

The Council advises that all taxi and private hire (TPH) drivers should wear a face covering at all times when in
a taxi or private hire vehicle.

A face covering is not the same as the surgical masks or respirators used by healthcare and other workers as
part of personal protective equipment. These should continue to be reserved for those who need them to
protect against risks in their workplace, such as health and care workers, and those in industrial settings, like
those exposed to dust hazards.

Face coverings can be a simple cloth covering that covers the face and mouth. They can be made using many
items found in the home or in many shops.

Information on how to wear and make a face covering can be accessed via these links:
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/how-to-wear-and-make-a-cloth-face-covering/how-to-wear-
and-make-a-cloth-face-covering

Alternatively, disposable or reusable face coverings can be obtained from a number of online or local retail
outlets. Face coverings should not be used if they zlﬂadﬁgn?eg in good condition or become too damp.


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-safer-transport-guidance-for-operators
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/coronavirus-covid-19-safer-transport-guidance-for-operators
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/coronavirus-covid-19-safer-travel-guidance-for-passengers#taxis-and-private-hire-vehicles
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/how-to-wear-and-make-a-cloth-face-covering/how-to-wear-and-make-a-cloth-face-covering
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/how-to-wear-and-make-a-cloth-face-covering/how-to-wear-and-make-a-cloth-face-covering

When wearing a face covering drivers should follow the Government guidance on the use of face coverings:

¢ A cloth face covering should cover your mouth and nose while allowing you to breathe comfortably. It can
be as simple as a scarf or bandana that ties behind the head

¢ Wash your hands or use hand sanitiser before putting it on and after taking it off and after use. Avoid
touching your eyes, nose, or mouth at all times and store used face coverings in a plastic bag until you have an
opportunity to wash them, if they are reusable

* Do not touch the front of the face covering, or the part of the face covering that has been in contact with
your mouth and nose. Once removed, make sure you clean any surfaces the face covering has touched

¢ You should wash a face covering regularly. It can go in with other laundry, using your normal detergent

¢ When wearing a face covering, take care to tuck away any loose ends

We recommend that drivers carry a pen and paper to help communication with some passengers (e.g.
someone who lip reads, someone who has a hearing impairment). Separate pen and paper should be available
for the driver and passengers.

Face coverings for passengers:

Passengers are being advised that they should wear face coverings when travelling by taxi or private hire
vehicle for the duration of the journey.

However, face coverings should not be used by children under the age of three or those who may find it
difficult to manage them correctly. For example, primary age children unassisted, or those with respiratory
conditions. Disabled people and those with breathing difficulties are also exempt from wearing a face
covering.

If a passenger is not wearing a face covering, then taxi and private hire drivers can refuse to carry them, taking
into account any mitigating circumstances such as the age of the child. The driver should explain to the
passenger that they are required to wear a face covering while travelling in a taxi or PHV.

Passengers that are making journeys that are booked through a private hire operator or engaged via a taxi app
should be informed, in advance, of the face covering requirement. In instances where a taxi is hailed on the
street or at a rank, a passenger may not be aware that they should use a face covering. In either instance, we
would expect drivers to explain to the passenger that they need a face covering to be permitted to travel in
the vehicle and to direct them to a nearby retail outlet or transport hub where face coverings can be obtained.
For their own safety we recommend drivers avoid getting into a lengthy discussion with passengers.

Whilst the laws requiring facemasks on public transport do not apply to Taxis and Private Hire vehicles, it is
recommended that the same rules are followed, including exemptions. Exemptions are as follows:

e If the person cannot put on, wear or remove a face covering—
(i) because of any physical or mental illness or impairment, or disability
(ii) without severe distress;

e If the person is travelling with, or providing assistance to, another person who relies on lip reading to
communicate

e If the person removes their face covering to avoid harm or injury, or the risk of harm or injury, to
themselves or others;

e If the person is travelling to avoid injury, or to escape a risk of harm, and does not have a face covering

with them; Page 74



e Ifitis reasonably necessary for the person to eat or drink, and they remove their face covering to eat
or drink;

e [f the person has to remove their face covering to take medication;

¢ If arelevant person requests that the person wearing their face covering removes it. (In the case of
Dacorum companies it is likely that a police constable would be the only ‘relevant person’)

Private hire vehicle (PHV) operators and taxi booking

Private hire vehicle (PHV) operators and taxi booking companies

All PHV operators and taxi booking companies should read and follow the Government’s guidance for
operators.

We also expect all private hire operators and taxi app companies and radio circuits to provide clear messages
to passengers, at the time of making the booking / as a condition of booking and as part of a booking
confirmation, on the requirement for passengers to wear a facial covering and also whether the vehicle in
question will enable social distancing of more than two metres between driver and passenger. It should also
be made clear to a passenger in the booking confirmation that the driver can refuse the journey if the
passenger does not have a face covering.

At the point of booking, the PHV operator / taxi app company should:

¢ Seek confirmation from the passenger that anyone planning to travel in the vehicle isn’t suffering from any
coronavirus symptoms

* Provide information to the passenger about whether Government social distancing guidelines of two metres
can / cannot be met in their choice of vehicle

¢ Advise the passenger to enter the vehicle via the near-side rear passenger door (diagonally opposite the
driver) and to sit in the nearside rear passenger seat for the duration of the journey ¢ Advise the passenger
about the requirement to wear a face covering for the duration of the journey (including entry and exit of the
vehicle)

¢ Advise passengers who choose to use TPH services to travel alone, or with other members of their
household.

¢ Notify the driver if more than one passenger is on the booking (e.g. additional people from the same
household) enabling the driver to decide whether or not they wish to undertake the journey

* Ask the passenger to pay by credit or debit card if possible and avoid paying by cash

¢ Advise passengers that drivers will keep the vehicle well ventilated for everyone’s safety by opening car
windows or by using the car’s vents to circulate air from outside.

Taxi and private hire drivers are also advised to follow all of the above guidance where applicable.

Social distancing

It is important that any passenger carrying journeys, as far as practicable, are undertaken within social
distancing guidelines to ensure passengers and drivers aren’t put at risk.

Page 75



Where it is not possible to achieve two metre social distancing, then efforts should be made to put as much
distance between the passenger and the driver as possible e.g. seating the passenger in the near-side rear seat
(diagonally opposite the driver) for the duration of the journey. Passengers should also consider alternatives
such as walking, cycling and alternative public transport where a distance of two metres from others can’t be
maintained.

Partitions in licensed vehicles

There has been an increase in interest of the use of screens as a way of providing physical separation between
drivers and passengers in order to reduce the transmission of COVID-19

Vehicle owners must ensure that they comply with the conditions of their licence which are provided when the
licence is issued and are available at: http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/environment-street-
care/licensing/taxis-private-hire-vehicles/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-licences/applying-for-a-vehicle-licence

A key condition is that licensees must -

Ensure that no material alteration or change in specification, design, condition or appearance of the vehicle are
made without the approval of the Council at any time whilst the licence is in force

Taking into account the above, the following information is provided to assist licensees further when
considering such modifications to their vehicle.

The London Scientific Technical Advisory Cell (STAC) has stated

There is no evidence available that demonstrates that partitions in taxis or PHVs reduce the risk of
transmission of COVID-19 infection. Partitions in taxis or PHVs do not provide a fully sealed compartment
which completely separates the driver from the passenger. Therefore, whilst it is possible that partitions may
reduce the risk of transmission of infection, the risk would not be eliminated entirely. It is not possible for the
STAC or PHE to assess the likely effectiveness of screens in reducing the risk of transmission of COVID-19 in
taxis or PHVs.

If drivers wish to install a partition or safety screen, vehicles will need to comply with government and industry
regulations. If partitions or screens are used, they should be cleaned regularly (see Cleaning of vehicles),
including between passenger journeys and changes of driver.

Leading automotive testing companies have advised that the introduction of these protective screens into a
vehicle could negatively affect the deployment of curtain and other air bag systems which are installed in the
vast majority of private hire vehicles.

Any fittings and equipment must comply with the Road Vehicle (Construction and Use) Regulations. Any
screen must be tested to the relevant EU standard for an original equipment type approval test covering
interior fittings. The screen must be approved by MIRA or other comparable independent product engineering,
testing, consultancy and certification organisation. Screens must be professionally and securely fitted in
accordance with the manufacturer’s instructions. Certification from the vehicle’s manufacturer should be
sought to confirm that the screen does not compromise the integrity of the vehicle structure. Screens should
be constructed of PETg or polycarbonate. The screen should not impede the driver’s vision, movement, or
communication with passengers.

The screen should not impede driver or passenger access or egress to the vehicle. Insurers should be notified
of any modifications made to the vehicle.

Page 76


http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/environment-street-care/licensing/taxis-private-hire-vehicles/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-licences/applying-for-a-vehicle-licence
http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/home/environment-street-care/licensing/taxis-private-hire-vehicles/taxi-and-private-hire-vehicle-licences/applying-for-a-vehicle-licence

Cleaning of vehicles

Cleaning vehicles with normal household disinfectant will reduce the risk of passing coronavirus infection on to
other people. After each passenger journey, drivers should clean hard surfaces such as door handles, window
winders, seat belts, card payment devices, the rear of the front seats and other surfaces passengers may have
touched. Drivers should then wash/sanitise their own hands. A thorough clean of the vehicle with normal
cleaning products should be completed at the end of each shift/working day.

The concentrations must be either a combined detergent disinfectant solution at a dilution of 1,000 parts per
million available chlorine or a household detergent followed by disinfection (1000 ppm av.cl.). Follow
manufacturer’s instructions for dilution, application and contact times for all detergents and disinfectants. If
an alternative disinfectant is used, this should be checked and ensure that it is effective against enveloped
viruses.

It is important to be careful when cleaning, more information regarding cleaning is provided by Public health
England at - https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-decontamination-in-non-healthcare-

settings/covid-19-decontamination-in-non-healthcare-settings

Further information

If you have any further questions which are not answered within this guide, please check our website, at
www.dacorum.gov.uk/taxilicensing, or contact the Licensing team:

e By email - licensing@dacorum.gov.uk
e By phone—01442 228225 / 228487

e By post — Licensing, Dacorum Borough Council, The Forum, Marlowes, Hemel Hempstead, HP1 1DN

Last updated: 19 June 2020

Page 77


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-decontamination-in-non-healthcare-settings/covid-19-decontamination-in-non-healthcare-settings
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-decontamination-in-non-healthcare-settings/covid-19-decontamination-in-non-healthcare-settings
http://www.dacorum.gov.uk/taxilicensing
mailto:licensing@dacorum.gov.uk

	Agenda
	1 Minutes
	5 Review of Statement of Licensing Policy
	Licensing HS-21-07-20-DRAFT Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-26
	Licensing HS-21-07-20-Licensing Act Policy 2020 Community Impact Assessment form

	6 Taxi and Private Hire Advice (Coronavirus)
	Licensing HS-21-07-20-Local guidance draft


